2023 RIVERSIDE COUNTY



HOMELESS POINT-IN-TIME COUNT AND SURVEY

More Than A Count



MAY 2023 Continuum of Care (CoC)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary	2
Homeless Point-in-Time Count Highlights	3
Introduction	7
Methodology	10
Results	19
Data Analysis	25
Planning & Implementation	29
Appendix A: Glossary	40
Appendix B: City Summary Tables	42
Appendix C: Unincorporated Area Summary Tables	95
Appendix D Supervisorial District Summary Tables	105
Appendix E: Subpopulations Summary Tables	115

CONTINUUM OF CARE | PAGE 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Riverside County Housing and Workforce Solutions (HWS) Department, in partnership with its Continuum of Care (CoC), coordinated the 2023 Homeless Point-in-Time Count (HPITC). The HPITC is planned and implemented by county agencies, city municipalities, non-profit service providers, law enforcement, and community volunteers. The unsheltered HPITC includes street-based counts, an unincorporated area count, and magnet events specific to Transitional Aged Youth (TAY). Through the *More Than A Count* Initiative, volunteers offer linkages to housing services and other social services through follow-up services. The sheltered HPITC consists of information derived from the countywide Homeless Management Information System (HMIS).

Data collected during the HPITC reflect Riverside County's homeless population at one point in time and is a requirement for the CoC to: 1) continue receiving federal funding for homeless assistance programs; 2) develop strategies to end homelessness; 3) understand and define the homeless population's characteristics and specific needs to improve models of care and wrap around services; 4) help individuals and families experiencing homelessness who are in need.

In comparison with 2022, the 2023 HPITC shows an overall increase of homeless population in Riverside County persons from 3,316 to 3,725. It represents a 12% increase that is lower than the 15% increase in the 2022 HPITC. The net increase of 409 persons experiencing homelessness results from a 52 person (4%) decrease in sheltered count and a 461 (23%) in unsheltered count. Of the total number of 3,725 persons experiencing homelessness counted in 2023, 2,441 were unsheltered and 1,284 were sheltered. The unsheltered count also demonstrated changes in sub-populations of interest. Households with children experienced a 22% increase, TAY showed a 35% decrease, seniors aged 62 years or above demonstrated a 47% increase, and the number of unsheltered veterans increased by 36% compared to the 2022 HPITC.

For the first time since 2020, the 2023 HPITC found a decrease in sheltered count (-4%) whereas the prior counts in 2021 and 2022 found increases of 34% and 37% respectively. However, the total counts continued to increase in these years, indicating that the unsheltered count in 2023 exceeded the reduction in sheltered count.

2023 RIVERSIDE COUNTY HOMELESS POINT-N-TIME COUNT

On January 25, 2023, Riverside County's Continuum of Care (CoC) conducted its annual Homeless Point-in-Time Count (HPITC). The count is a one-day snapshot that captures the characteristics and situations of people experiencing homelessness. The numbers below highlight findings from the count, which help identify gaps in the service delivery system and help cities and communities better understand the nature and extent of homelessness countywide.



HIGHLIGHTS | PAGE 3





Top Barriers to Resolving Homelessness

(UNSHELTERED, INTERVIEW ONLY)

Top barriers identified by respondents align with personal characteristics barriers found in research over the past two decades



First Time Homeless 19% increase from 2022



Chronically Homeless 18% increase from 2022



Substance Use 17% increase from 2022



Mental Health Issues 8% increase from 2022

3,725 Sheltered and Unsheltered (12% increase from 2022)



Unsheltered (66% of total count, 23% increase from 2022 count)



Sheltered (34% of total count, 4% decrease from 2022 count)

HIGHLIGHTS | PAGE 4



The homeless count provides an estimate of the number of homeless persons and identifies the demographics and unique characteristics of the unsheltered population



INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION

Homeless Point-in-Time Count

The Homeless Point-in-Time Count (HPITC) provides the county, city and non-profit agencies as well as businesses with an insight to homelessness at the local level to assist in determining which programs and services can be designed and improved to end homelessness and it is also a requirement of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Continuums of Care (CoCs) are required to provide an unduplicated count of sheltered and unsheltered persons experiencing homelessness following HUD standards as explained in HUD's annual HIC and PIT count notice and HUD's Point-in-Time Count Methodology Guide. HUD identifies a series of data to be collected and reported to the national office which is then aggregated into the national summary to congress through the Annual Homeless Assessment Report (AHAR). HUDs regulatory requirement is that a sheltered count be conducted annually and an unsheltered be conducted every other year during the last 10 days in January.

The Importance of the Point-in-Time Count

- The Count provides a "snapshot" of the number of people experiencing sheltered and unsheltered homelessness on a single night.
- Locally, the data collected identifies areas of homeless concentration and determines the level of change from one year to another.
- HUD funding is awarded through a competitive process that requires a PIT Count and awards points based on the CoC's demonstration of a reduction in homelessness from year to year.
- Select State of California funding opportunities determine level of need based on HPITC data.



Above: HPITC volunteer conducting an early morning interview in the City of Coachella

Riverside County Homeless Point-in-Time Count

As the County's appointed CoC lead agency, the Housing and Workforce Solutions (HWS) Department takes on the role of coordinating the HPITC in partnership with the CoC. The count is planned and implemented with the assistance of more than 100 community partners, stakeholders, non-profit agencies, law enforcement partners, city leaders, faith-based organization, and homeless outreach staff.

The HPITC provides an opportunity to learn about the characteristics of persons experiencing homelessness, gain an understanding of who is accessing shelters and housing resources, and most importantly what services people need to help end their homelessness. At the local level, the CoC collects additional information useful in understanding the nature and trends in homelessness to strategically invest resources in effective interventions and raise public awareness. This additional data is not submitted to HUD but helps inform efforts in responding to the special needs of various groups experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness.



Learning about the characteristics and needs of unsheltered individuals is a primary goal of the HPITC

Examples of locally gathered information include:

- Capture expectant parents as well as pregnant teens (HUD only requires parenting youth information)
- · Learning if unsheltered individuals have health insurance coverage
- Identifying residents experiencing housing instability who are "couch surfing" or doubled-up and living with friends or family
- · Identifying individuals who have companion animals
- Providing opportunity for individuals to request post count follow up and be linked to social services
- · Reasons contributing to homelessness as described by persons themselves
- Determining if individuals released from jail or prison experience barriers in accessing housing due to their status

METHODOLOGY

METHODOLOGY

Unsheltered Count

The 2023 unsheltered HPITC consisted of the following activities:

1. Planning and Organizing the Unsheltered Count

A HPITC planning team is formed to ensure effective and efficient coordination, implementation, and support for the HPITC process. Planning involves careful consideration of when, where, how the HPITC information is collected, who will conduct the count, how counters will be prepared and trained, and how the information will be handled once collected. An unsheltered HPITC requires the community to develop approaches and methods to collect valid information while respecting the personal rights of persons living in homelessness. The 2023 plan incorporated recommendations and feedback from prior counts, HUD guidance, insight from persons with lived experience, subject matter experts, and evidence-based data from various sources.

2. Coordinating with Key Stakeholders and Community Partners

Coordinating the count includes establishing primary contacts in each city and unincorporated areas countywide. These city leaders work to identify areas in their jurisdictions where unsheltered individuals live, places where individuals experiencing homelessness access social services, raise public awareness about the HPITC, and engage their community to encourage involvement.

3. Implementing the HPITC Riverside County

The 2023 unsheltered HPITC consisted of the following primary components:

- Street-Based Count on January 25, 2023 between 5:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m.
- Service-Based Count on January 25, 2023 between 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
- Unincorporated Area Count from January 25, 2023 to January 26, 2023 between 5:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m.
- Specialized Unsheltered Count:
 - More Than a Count Initiative: on January 25, 2023 for linkages to services for sub-populations
- Youth Count including:
 - Street-based Count from January 25, 2023 to January 27 between 2 p.m. and 8 p.m.
 - Come and Be Connected magnet events from January 26, 2023 to January 27, 2023 between 2:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
 - Phone interviews (youth only) from January 25, 2023 to January 27, 2023



Check-in at various volunteer deployment sites

HOMELESS POINT-IN-TIME COUNT COMPONENTS

- i. Unsheltered or Street-Based Count focuses on a one-day, unduplicated, physical count of persons living on city streets and other places not meant for human habitation. Hundreds of volunteers help communities' canvas their neighborhoods to enumerate persons experiencing homelessness. Locations known to be frequented by unsheltered persons are identified in advance and are the focus of the street count. The 'known locations' count focuses on places where multiple unsheltered persons are found at other times in the year such as encampments, service organizations, 'hot spots' that frequently have larger numbers of unsheltered people clustered together.
- ii. Service-Based Count extends beyond the primary hours of the street count to locate and count unsheltered individuals missed during the count. It focuses on conducting surveys at service locations frequented by unsheltered individuals and begins on the day of the unsheltered count. Social service providers frequented by individuals experiencing homelessness are recruited to participate in surveying their unsheltered clients missed on the day of the count. Screening is necessary for the Service-Based Count because the service locations may offer mainstream resources to people qualifying as homeless as well as those who do not meet HUD's definition of homeless.
- iii. Unincorporated (non-city) Area Count is conducted over the course of up to seven days, activities continue to ensure a full count with unsheltered persons in (non-city) unincorporated areas that include "harder-to-reach" sites that require more time to cover.



Trained volunteers canvassing unincorporated area to ensure a full count



Counting team in unincorporated area of the City of Moreno Valley

iv. *More Than a Count* initiative is one of engagement and service. While collecting data is a central purpose for the HPITC, Riverside County CoC recognizes the mandated HPITC as an opportunity to do more than simply count unsheltered persons. The HPITC is a chance to connect with unsheltered residents. On the morning of the count, the initiative works to maximize county-wide bed availability for immediate referrals by experienced street-based homeless outreach teams, county staff, and service providers assigned to provide support at every deployment site. The mobile application allows for the collection of client-level data to facilitate after care services, inclusive of housing and other social services, to individuals who request follow-up.

- v. *Youth Count* is a dedicated Youth Point-in-Time Count (YPITC) which occurs over a 3-day period and identifies unaccompanied minors and homeless youth ages 18-24 living in Riverside County.
- vi. Come and Be Connected Events for Youth are intended to identify and interview youth who meet the unsheltered criteria and may have been missed during the street based YPITC. Youth experiencing housing instability or facing homelessness are connected to community resources such as housing, mental health services, support groups, education assistance, and employment services. These events address a challenge many communities face because unsheltered youth do not access shelters, they tend to couch-surf and are considered a hidden population.



Transition Age Youth (TAY) Volunteer Deployment Site

Norco Community College Volunteers



Operation SafeHouse Volunteer Deployment Site

Sheltered Count

How is the Sheltered Count Conducted?

HUD specifically states in the <u>HIC/PIT Count Data Collection Notice</u> that CoCs must count all individuals or families who meet the criteria of the homeless definition. This includes individuals and families *"living in a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designated to provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate shelters, transitional housing, hotels/motels paid for by charitable organizations, or federal, state, or local government programs for low-income individuals)"* on the night designated for the count. The sheltered count also includes every person who stays overnight in an emergency shelter.

A person **is not** considered homeless if the person resides in:

- A medical facility such as hospital, psychiatric facility, and nursing home
- Jail, prison, or juvenile detention facility
- Chemical dependency facility such assubstance abuse treatment facility and detox center
- · Foster care home or group home

Not homeless if in hospital



Housing Inventory Count

The Housing Inventory Count (HIC) is a point-in-time inventory of projects within the County that provide beds and units dedicated to serving persons experiencing homeless. It is intended to provide HUD and CoCs with information about the shelter and housing capacity of homeless crisis response systems. It reflects the number of beds and units available for occupancy on the night of the count that are **dedicated to serve persons who are homeless**.

Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)

HMIS data is used to generate these counts for projects with 100% of agencies inputting their bed availability. CoCs must verify with project staff that HMIS data are complete and correct for the night of the HIC and HPITC, and that project entry and project exit dates have been entered for all persons who entered or exited on or before the date of the count.

A data collection instrument is used to collect the total number of occupied beds and the number of persons for each subpopulation for non-participating HMIS programs and for HMIS participating agencies whose HMIS data is incomplete and/or incorrect. The same questions used to collect subpopulation data through HMIS is used for the data collection instrument. Thus, sheltered count data for all sheltered programs is gathered either through a data collection sheet or HMIS.

Who is Counted?

The unsheltered count includes every person that meets the following HUD criteria: "individuals and families with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus/train station, airport, or camping ground."

HUD states that the following may be counted as "unsheltered":

Tiny home and shed residents if:

- unit does not contain water, kitchen, restroom or is not connected to sewer and utilities.
- unit is on a campus maintained by an organization, such as a governmental entity, nonprofit, or religious organization, where toilets, showers, and communal food preparation or food service areas are provided.

Persons living in vehicles (cars, trucks, and vans) including households sleeping in their vehicles in safe parking programs, designated areas, or on a campus maintained by a government or other entity where toilets, showers, and communal food preparation or food service areas are provided.

Persons living in recreational vehicles (RV) if the RV is:

- in disrepair (e.g., holes, broken windows, flat tires, removed or broken siding);
- · does not have access to sewer, water, and electricity connections; and
- the RV parked in an unusual place, including non-RV designated lots, non-residential areas, or areas where RVs are not allowed to park.





Above: Trained volunteers interviewing individuals sleeping in a vehicle

Tiny Home without amenities

HUD states the following *may not* be counted as "unsheltered":

- · Persons temporarily staying with family or friends (i.e., "doubled-up" or "couch surfing")
- Persons living in recreational vehicles (RV) if the RV does not meet the criteria for sheltered homeless people living in RV, which is:
 - located in mobile home park or campus advertising itself as providing temporary stays and
 - the RV is regularly connected to water, sewer and utilities or a septic system, well and generator, or the park or campus provide toilets, showers, and communal food preparation or food service areas.

Who Conducts the Count?

Check-in at various volunteer deployment sites

A HPITC planning team partners with community stakeholders to plan and execute the count. The planning team is comprised of a HPITC coordinator, a YPITC coordinator with extensive homeless youth outreach experience, and several CoC staff experienced in planning and implementing a HPITC. The planning team develops a HPITC plan that includes HPITC promotion and awareness, survey tool development, and volunteer recruitment and training.

In the months leading to the count, a county-wide volunteer recruitment effort is implemented. Volunteers are recruited and directed to the *More Than A Count* website to register and participate in a mandatory training. Once volunteer requirements are met, volunteers are assigned to their counting location and are provided access to the Riverside County survey on the Survey123 app. On the day of the count registered and trained volunteers take to the streets to canvas their assigned neighborhoods to identify and interview unsheltered residents.



Deployment Site Teams





What Information is Collected?

The survey tool collects demographic information (gender, age, race, ethnicity) and includes questions to count the number of persons from the following subpopulations:

- Chronically Homeless Individuals and Families
- · Persons Living with HIV/AIDS;
- Persons with Substance Use Disorders;
- Persons with Mental Illness or Emotional Impairment;
- Unaccompanied Youth under the age of 18
- · Veterans; and
- · Victims of domestic violence.

Other Subpopulation Data Collected includes:

- · Persons released from a correctional institution;
- Person with Physical or Developmental Disability;

Survey

- · Person with Chronic Health Conditions;
- Seniors; and
 - Transition Age Youth (TAY) 18-24

How is the Information Collected?

Data is collected using a HPITC survey that includes all HUD required questions and is specifically developed for Riverside County. Counters download the ArcGIS Survey123 app onto their smartphones or tablets and are given access to the 2023 HPITC survey.

The digital survey form simplifies the interview experience by eliminating the need to devote time and effort to determine which questions to ask and avoiding asking people to respond to questions clearly not applicable to their circumstances. Two types of surveys are used to collect HPITC data:

Interview Survey: The Riverside HPITC is an engaged count that attempts to connect with each person encountered during the designated HPITC time periods. The interview survey allows unsheltered individuals to self-report their circumstances and characteristics.

Observation Survey: When conducting a street count, there are situations which make it impossible for counters to interview a person in an unsheltered location. Persons may be found in areas visible to the HPITC counting team but may be unsafe or impractical to access. It might not be safe to approach someone in an abandoned building or invade the privacy of someone who is sleeping and does not want to be disturbed. An encampment may be in treacherous terrain, not reasonably accessible. In these situations, an observation survey is completed to ensure the person is still counted as unsheltered. The observation survey collects limited information based on what the counter can observe.



Above: Volunteer conducting an interview survey in the City of Riverside.

Left: Survey conducted on phone.

2023 SURVEY ENHANCEMENTS

Phone Interviews

The 2023 HPITC provided an opportunity to conduct interviews either in person or by phone. Since this was a new approach, the planning team piloted this approach by creating a process all phone interviewers must follow and gave access only to key youth service providers and experienced outreach staff. Of the 30 phone interviews conducted, 43% were with transition age youth, 33% ethnically Latin; 50% White, 20% Black; males and females were relatively evenly represented. Although there were phone interviews in each district, nearly half (43%) were in District 1.

Health Insurance Coverage

This year the survey also collected data on health insurance coverage. The numbers show a strong majority (66%) of the unsheltered persons who were surveyed report that they do have health insurance coverage. This fact could lend itself to developing service strategies that include connecting with unsheltered persons in health clinics and other healthcenter locations.

Pregnancy

The 2023 survey was revised to capture expectant parents as well as pregnant teens. In 2023, 17 persons were identified as expecting a child. Of these, two persons were a male and a female in the same household, 24% were males with pregnant partners who were not interviewed, and the remainder were pregnant females. This change in data collection gives new insight into addressing unsheltered persons who are expecting a child.

Revised Data Parameters

This year, there were some new instructions provided by HUD. These divided adults into separate 10-year age groups, rather than just ages 18-24 and 25+. HUD also redefined 'seniors' as ages 65+ (as opposed to prior 60+ or 62+). This resulted in 148 unsheltered persons counted as seniors. If we used the 60+ definition, there would have been 216 seniors in the unsheltered homeless count. When added to the number of sheltered persons, ages 65+, this year's count using HUD parameters was 215 seniors age 65+ (9%) which is an underrepresentation compared to 2022.

New Supervisorial District Boundaries

Local changes also impact the data. For example, new boundaries were drawn for the Supervisorial Districts. This impacts the HPITC comparisons between 2022 and 2023. Overall data was also called out for Census Designated Places (CDP), giving us more information about recognized unincorporated areas within districts.



RESULTS

DEMOGRAPHICS



• The 2,441 unsheltered homeless persons were White (68%), Black/African American (15%), multiple races (11%), American Indian or Alaskan Native (3%), with the balance Asian or Native Hawaiian.

• The races of sheltered persons largely mirror the unsheltered except Black/African American comprise (22%) and multiple races only (3%).



- The gender distribution of the total unsheltered homeless persons shows (71%) are male, (28%) are female, the remaining (1%) declaring gender non-conforming, transgender, questioning, or other.
- The gender of sheltered persons, however, shows a more balanced distribution of males (57%) and females (43%) with other groups at only one-half percent.
- Using HUD's new data descriptions for age, reveal that the vast majority children under 18 are sheltered (24% of count) as opposed to unsheltered (1%).
- Seniors are the smallest portion of both the unsheltered (6%) and sheltered (5%) count.
- Transition age youth are fairly equally at unsheltered (7%) or sheltered (6%).
- Adults ages 35-44 comprised the highest number of unsheltered persons (22%) while those 25-34 are the largest portion of the sheltered adult groups (19%).
- The number of unsheltered seniors in 2022 vs 2023 appear virtually equal (150 vs 148), however the change is masked by the revised age groups. The 2022 number included persons aged 60+ and the 2023 number only persons age 65+. The change in the definition of seniors reduced the unsheltered senior count by 68 persons, a substantive impact of (46%).

HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN

- The number of unsheltered households with children remain one of the smallest subgroups and have remained consistently small over the past few counts.
- In 2023, eleven households containing 23 persons including 13 children were unsheltered households (including three unaccompanied children (teens).
- The 2022 count captured a total of 29 persons in unsheltered households with children.

Research demonstrates that children are negatively impacted by Adverse Childhood Experiences^[1] including housing instability and social isolation, among other factors. The negative consequences impact multiple areas of health and social functioning. Given the small numbers of persons in this group and the proportion of persons accessing health insurance there is opportunity to implement strategies to eliminate homelessness among this group, and decrease negative impacts on children.

[1] A number of research articles describe the impacts of Adverse Childhood Experiences on children. Access information through the Center for Disease Control at: https://www.cdc.gov/violenceprevention/aces/index.html





YOUTH

- Unsheltered, unaccompanied youth include 171 transition age youth a 18-24 and 3 youth under 18.
- Like the general population, the majority are male (64%), non-latino (53%), and white (61%).
- Unlike the balance of the unsheltered population, the proportion of Black/ African American and multiple races are equal (16%).
- Nearly three times as many were found on the streets as opposed to other living situations which included staying in vehicles (13%), encampments or tents (both at 12%), parks (10%) as well as abandoned buildings, bus stations, and under bridges.
- Family disruption was the dominant response as the primary reason for homelessness (32%) with mental illness and runaway tied at 10% as the next highest reason.
- Nearly half (47%) declared that they were homeless for the first time. This factor, coupled with 37% qualifying as chronically homeless lead us to the conclusion that they have been continuously homeless for a year or more, as opposed to cyclically homeless three or more times.
- Substance abuse (30%), mental health issues (22%), and post-traumatic stress (25%) were the top ranked disabilities and at least one youth was found in each of the categories of challenges and barriers.
- Unlike other subgroups, one third, (33%) had experienced foster care placement and only 45% have health insurance.

VETERANS

- 100 veterans of the 198 found in the unsheltered count were interviewed.
- The vast majority identified as male (88%), however, unlike other groups, 4% reported their gender as other than male or female.
- The largest age group (31%) are ages 55-64, followed by 23% ages 45-54, 18% ages 35-44, and another 11% ages 65+.
- The racial distribution is roughly the same as the overall unsheltered population with a White majority (57%) and substantive numbers of Black/African American (18%) or Multiple races (20%).
- Veterans were largely found on the streets (38%), in tents (16%), encampments (15%), or vehicles. None reported living under a bridge or in a tiny home.
- Like other groups, family disruption (25%), lack of income (17%), and unemployment (16%) were the leading factors contributing to homelessness. No one reported domestic violence or runaway as a cause.
- Based on the total number of responses, veterans face multiple barriers: nearly 1/3 reported physical disability, chronic health, PTSD, and substance abuse as personal barriers. 20-25% reported mental health, traumatic brain injury, and developmental disabilities as key factors.
- Like other groups, most have health insurance (72%).
- Based on required characteristics, 49% qualify as chronically homeless.
- Almost one in five (19%) experienced jail or prison in the prior 12 months.





FORMERLY INCARCERATED

Two hundred forty-seven of the unsheltered persons interviewed identified as having been in jail or prison in the prior 12 months. This group shares many characteristics similar to the veteran group:

- 72% males and almost 4% of non-binary genders; White, with nearly equal numbers of Black/African American or multiple races; largely found on the streets (31%), in encampments (24%), vehicles (15%) or tents (13%); and have health insurance (70%).
- Like veterans, the formerly incarcerated experience multiple barriers but the incidence of co-occurring challenges is even higher than that of Veterans: substance abuse (42%), PTSD (35%), mental health issue (32%), traumatic brain injury (28%), physical disability (27%), chronic health issue (24%), and developmental disability (10%).
- Unlike the Veteran group, the formerly incarcerated included domestic violence and HIV/AIDS in their barriers. As expected, jail release is one of the primary reasons for homelessness, however, it was only cited by 9% of the group. Family disruption (29%), lack of income (17%), substance abuse (11%), and unemployment continue to be identified as the primary reasons for homelessness.

CHRONIC HOMELESSNESS

- Like other groups, the 659 persons in the chronically homeless group are predominantly male (67%), White (70%), non-latino, living on the streets (35%), in vehicles/encampments (17% each), or in tents (15%).
- Family disruption, lack of income, substance abuse, and unemployment are identified as primary reasons for their homelessness.
- The challenges and barriers faced by persons in the chronically homeless group have even higher incidence than veterans or the formerly incarcerated with several factors reported by more than 41%: substance abuse (59%), PTSD (44%), mental health issue (42%), physical disability (41%), chronic health issue (31%), and traumatic brain injury and developmental disability at 24% each. This data indicates that a high proportion of the chronically homeless are impacted by three or more barriers to resolving their homelessness.
- Nearly one in five (19%) of this group also experienced jail or prison stays within the past 12 months but only 4% indicated that their release was a primary reason for their homelessness.





COUCH SURFERS

Because HUD does not classify persons staying temporarily in another person's home (couch surfers) as technically homeless, this population is at high-risk for becoming homeless.

- The HPITC total numbers reported to HUD do not include 39 couch surfers identified during the count.
- The ages of couch surfers range from under 18 years to over 65 years, however, the highest proportion is in the 18-24 year old group (36%).
- The other demographics (race, ethnicity, gender), the reasons for homelessness, the barriers, all mirror the general unsheltered population.
- It is interesting to note that although 54% report being homeless for the first time, 26% qualify as chronically homeless. This pattern is similar to the overall youth population data.

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION

District comparisons are impacted by the revised district boundaries.

- District 1 and District 4 host the largest portions of the unsheltered group, accounting for 62% of the unsheltered population.
- The number of unsheltered persons counted in each district exceeds the number of sheltered persons except for District 3 which has 5% of the unsheltered group and 13% sheltered.
- Unsheltered homeless counts at the city level show that Riverside, Palm Springs and Hemet have the highest numbers.
- Cities with the most growth in unsheltered persons are Murrieta (175%), Hemet (152%), and Desert Hot Springs and Lake Elsinore (123% each).
- Cities leading the reductions in unsheltered homelessness show smaller percentages: La Quinta (-43%), Corona (-41%), Cathedral City (-34%), and Banning (-26%).
- Comparing 2023 to 2022, when sheltered numbers are added to the unsheltered person count, Riverside and Indio are the cities with the largest increases (26% and 13% respectively).
- Overall, the changes in the total percentages of persons at the city level when combining the sheltered and unsheltered counts are minimal, typically less than 3%. In fact, three cities (Calimesa, Moreno Valley, and Rancho Mirage) had no change in unsheltered homelessness and five (Calimesa, Desert Hot Springs, La Quinta, Palm Desert, and Rancho Mirage), had no change in sheltered numbers.



HOMELESS POINT-IN-TIME COUNTS BY CITY (UNSHELTERED)

There are 28 cities within the boundaries of the Riverside CoC. No two jurisdictions are identical. The geography ranges from densely populated urban areas to remote mountains and deserts. Characteristics for individual cities, unincorporated areas, and supervisorial districts can be found in the Appendices.

City/Jurisdiction	2019	2020	2022	2023
Banning	39	43	54	40
Beaumont	15	16	16	33
Blythe	48	73	79	105
Calimesa	16	17	8	8
Canyon Lake	0	0	0	0
Cathedral City	82	44	61	40
Coachella	51	78	74	67
Corona	164	109	110	65
Desert Hot Springs	45	68	48	107
Eastvale	0	4	6	7
Hemet	112	93	82	207
Indian Wells	2	1	0	0
Indio	52	83	105	108
Jurupa Valley	139	103	96	79
La Quinta	9	3	7	4
Lake Elsinore	66	50	35	78
Menifee	17	19	28	25
Moreno Valley	38	165	77	77
Murrieta	17	18	12	33
Norco	11	12	14	13
Palm Desert	23	18	26	39
Palm Springs	196	189	222	239
Perris	77	52	59	90
Rancho Mirage	6	12	3	3
Riverside (D1+2 in 2022)	439	587	513	605
San Jacinto	48	31	57	120
Temecula	59	59	28	35
Unincorporated District 1	45	44	24	47
Unincorporated District 2	44	31	27	18
Unincorporated District 3	65	54	48	28
Unincorporated District 4	98	58	45	43
Unincorporated District 5	9	15	8	68
Wildomar	13	6	7	10
Total	2,045	2,155	1,980	2,441

DATA ANALYSIS

DEDUPLICATION

Strategies for identifying and eliminating double counting are important to the accuracy of the HPITC. Using a 'blitz' approach to the street count helps to limit the potential for interviewing someone more than once. Some activities of the HPITC, however, occur on more than one day.

- The survey instrument and interview incorporated screening questions to avoid duplication. After greeting the individual, interviewers asked if anyone had recently asked them questions about where they stayed on the night of the count. After confirming the person slept in a location that qualified them as experiencing homelessness, a verbal interview collected the survey data.
- 2) Survey teams were assigned to conduct the count and survey in specific geographic areas, on a designated date and time.
- 3) Electronic devises with geolocation capabilities and survey start and end times enhanced the ability to identify potential duplication of files.
- 4) The survey information was used to generate a unique identifier for each survey and respondent. Records for persons who were contacted and refused to be interviewed also included a unique identifier and were further designated in the data as observed rather than interviewed.
- 5) The survey instrument also collected the surveyor's name and contact information so that contact could be made if clarification was needed.

Ensuring Data Integrity

Ensuring data integrity was important to the accuracy of the HPITC results. Data quality and deduplication verified:

- Persons included in the count were homeless per HPITC requirements
- All persons identified as homeless in the HPITC were homeless on the night the CoC designated as its HPITC date
- Persons identified as homeless on the CoC's designated HPITC date were not already counted
- Internal logic of the data is sound. For example, a child who was 3 years old at the time of the HPITC would not logically also be a parenting youth. The record would be flagged for additional review to determine if the record should be excluded in its entirety, or simply removed from analysis of certain fields.

Deduplication Phase 1: Outliers

Data analysis team communicated with volunteers, when necessary, to seek clarification about completed interview and observed surveys. Team removed all submitted surveys plotted outside Riverside County. The data was geocoded to assign each point a city and Supervisor District.



Above: The data collected for the HPITC underwent a multiphase deduplication process

Deduplication Phase 2: Identifying Duplicate Records

A multi-phase deduplication process using a Python script was applied to the records. A unique identity, generated from joining portions of data: initials of first and last name, age, gender, race, ethnicity, and birthplace assisted in identifying duplicate records. Unique identifiers, personal characteristics, time, date and location for data collection, descriptions in the records, and the name and contact information for the interviewer were also used. Surveys were assigned a record number and household members were tied together by a global identification number. The survey instrument indicated the GPS location of the surveyor's mobile device and date and time the data was captured, providing a geographic location of where the survey took place. This offered another factor to assist in deduplication. The project and global identification numbers were sorted, searched, and reviewed for possible duplication. Records subject to removal were reviewed by two people and presented to data analysis group prior to removal.

Validity, Reliability, and Confidence in the HPITC

Validity and reliability are foundational concerns in research and data analysis.

- · Did the variables measure the condition intended?
- · Would the results likely be consistent if the count was repeated?
- How do we know that the people counted or interviewed represent the homeless population overall?

The Riverside County HPITC gathered data from the entire population. To accomplish this, the HPITC engaged in multiple methods for identifying persons who were homeless, canvassed the entire geographic area, and invited everyone contacted to complete a standardized survey with trained survey-takers.

What were the results of the effort to gather data from each person living in homelessness in the region on the HPITC date? The 2023 HPITC unsheltered count canvassed the entire geographic area, and the sheltered count drew data for all sheltered persons meeting the HUD definition from the centralized HMIS database. The survey design and HMIS both included data to validate a person as homeless under the HUD definition.

Population Estimates

There were 1,368 unsheltered persons surveyed during the HPITC. The total of these persons, when added to the HMIS data for another 1,284, persons who were sheltered at the HPITC is 2,651. This represents 71% of the total HPITC of 3,725 persons. HUD describes having known data of approximately 80% as "ideal"[2] and notes that extrapolation can be used even with less known data. This lends to the conclusion that overall HPITC estimates are reasonable.

The variables in the HPITC have different levels of known data. In general, the level of known data is higher than the unknown data. The higher the level of known data, the higher confidence we hold in using the estimate. We also know that the known data represents the minimum number of persons in the various categories and the extrapolated values represent a reasonable picture of the full group encountered during the HPITC.

{2] HUD Exchange. https://www.hudexchange.info. FAQ #3473

Extrapolation

Counting unsheltered persons can be challenging. A simple 'headcount' of persons who appear to be be experiencing homelessness can draw on a profile of observable characteristics such as clothing, hygiene, physical location, etc. to create a tally of apparently homeless persons in the CoC. The CoC is invested in understanding more about the persons counted. Whenever possible, each person encountered during the HPITC is asked if they are willing to participate in a survey that gathers demographic and other information. Not everyone will agree to participate, as a result, the HPITC ends up with some amount of incomplete information about the persons counted. Even those who agree to be surveyed on the night of the count may refuse to answer some questions, while others may be in locations that can be observed but are not safely accessible.

HUD reminds CoCs to avoid deleting records or throwing out entire surveys or forms representing an individual experiencing homelessness on the night of the HPITC because of missing data. HUD also does not allow CoCs to report the count of "unknown" or "missing" for basic demographics of persons included in the HPITC report. HUD provides resources to help CoCs account for missing demographic data collected during their HPITC. One primary method of distributing the "unknown" and "missing" into the relevant response categories is extrapolation. Extrapolation calculates the total number of persons in each category by taking the percentage of persons who are known to be in each category (i.e., who did answer) and applies those percentages to the total number of "unknown" and "missing" cases. Those totals are then added to the known cases to provide an estimate of the total number of people expected to be in each category. These numbers are reported as extrapolated counts. HUD provides an "extrapolation tool" to help in this process. During the extrapolation process, attention is given to ensure that the data is logical and applied to the relevant categories. For example, extrapolation of persons who were observed to be "over age 25" would not include children ages 0-17 years. The 2023 data analysis includes extrapolated numbers where appropriate and identifies data derived by extrapolation or only from known survey data.



Volunteers in the City of Palm Springs receive a certificate of appreciation when they return from canvasing their assigned neighborhood

PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION

HOMELESS POINT-IN-TIME COUNT PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION

Community Planning Meetings

The plan and methods used for the Riverside County HPITC, and its cities is developed through community involvement in a series of meetings held over a period of several months. Community planning meetings that convene key leaders and stakeholders, service providers, law enforcement, youth service providers, and non-profit agencies were launched in November 2022. Three monthly planning meetings with approximately 70-90 community partners in attendance were facilitated in preparation for the homeless count. The meetings were held virtually, were recorded and the recordings were posted on the HPITC website.

Purpose of the Community Planning Meetings:

- . Ensure an effective and accurate HPITC
- Facilitate collaborative discussions on priorities, outreach and engagement strategies, location mapping, mobile survey development, and identification of deployment sites in each city
- · Mobilize community partners to promote and participate in the homeless count

Selection of a Date and Time

HUD requires that the date and time of the HPITC fall within the last 10 calendar days of January to ensure consistency across the U.S. and allow for trends to be monitored appropriately. During the colder months, unsheltered residents are more likely to access emergency shelters making it easier to count them than when they are unsheltered and moving around. In Riverside County, selection of the HPITC date also takes into consideration the HPITC dates of neighboring counties to avoid two counts taking place on the same day and potentially overwhelming shared resources.



Above: The HPITC planning team meets with street outreach leads to discuss participation and engagement strategies



Above: An early morning count ensures volunteers will be able to engage unsheltered individuals





City Leaders, Deployment Sites, and Individual Planning Sessions

Homelessness impacts communities across Riverside County and the planning team's goal is to be inclusive of community-wide and cross-sectoral partnerships. The planning team depends on the participation of every city and unincorporated area to ensure a full census unsheltered HPITC. City mayors and managers are engaged early and invited to designate a city point of contact for maximum participation during planning and on the morning of the count. The Riverside Sheriff's Office (RSO) Homeless Outreach Team (HOT) takes a lead role and guides planning efforts for the unincorporated area count.

In early January 2023, planning sessions to discuss individual implementation plans with every HPITC city lead were scheduled. Planning sessions included city leads, assigned county coordinator, law enforcement, and street outreach team leads. During the meetings, leads shared their canvassing maps, their plans for counting teams, reviewed volunteer lists, requested additional incentives or volunteers, and shared concerns or needs leading to the HPITC. Feedback from city leads about the planning sessions was favorable as they served as a way to finalize their planning efforts.

Site leads are selected because of their familiarity of local homelessness, where unsheltered individuals live, where they spend their time and where they access services in their community. Additionally, site leads are familiar with city resources, local volunteer programs, and faith-based organizations allowing them to leverage resources, including volunteers, to assist on the day of the count. Leads work with the planning team to share their knowledge about homelessness in their city, obtain guidance and training about implementing HUD's definition of homeless during the count, accurately coordinate the count, create volunteer counting teams, and identify incentives and materials/supplies needed at their site.

Deployment Site Leaders work to implement a comprehensive count by:

- Identifying a deployment site to be used on the day of the count
- Collaborating with local law enforcement
- Identifying encampments and other locations where unsheltered
 persons live/sleep/hangout
- Creating canvassing maps and creating counting teams

County Coordinators

County coordinators are assigned to every deployment site to work alongside city leads and provide support on the morning of the count. The primary role of the coordinators is to ensure deployment sites conduct a concise and accurate count and ensure volunteers follow procedures. Coordinators participate in individual city planning sessions to be informed about how leaders plan to implement the HPITC in their city, assist with volunteer check-in, and provide technical support related to the Survey123 app. The majority of coordinators are paid county staff with previous HPITC experience.



Above: Deployment site lead provides last minute instruction in the City of Indio



Above: County coordinator facilitates discussion with volunteers in the City of Riverside

Deployment Site Leader and County Coordinator Orientation

All county coordinators and deployment site leaders, especially those new to the count, attend a *How* to Implement the Homeless Point-in-Time Count Orientation. The orientation includes information about how to prepare for the day of the count, a step-by-step review of the day of the count agenda, how to conduct the volunteer check-in process, and prepare site for volunteers. Orientation sessions are also attended by city staff and law enforcement partners. The orientation is recorded, and all city deployment site leads, and county coordinators receive a link to access the recording to view and access as needed.



Above: Deployment site leaders welcome volunteers and prepare volunteers to deploy into their community in the City of Corona



Above: Trained volunteers waiting to receive their counting team assignment in the City of Palm Springs

PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION | PAGE 31

Volunteers

Volunteer participation in the HPITC is key to ensuring a coordinated and accurate count. To cover Riverside County's entire geographic area, the planning team established a goal of recruiting 800 volunteers to assist in all HPITC activities including the YPITC.

Recruitment

The volunteer recruitment plan included:

- Designing and developing the HPITC website that included a volunteer registration link
- A volunteer management system was linked to the volunteer website allowing registered volunteers to access the volunteer training and facilitated communication with volunteers
 - The system allowed planners to text volunteers with updates and reminders
- Developing a social/media marketing tool kit that included:
 - volunteer recruitment flyers for print/email
 - flyers sized for social media platforms
 - social media sample posts
 - PowerPoint slides for HPITC presentations
 - HPITC FAQ document
- Recruitment flyers were distributed to past HPITC volunteers, local businesses, Continuum of Care partners, local colleges and universities, and school districts



Above: City of Hemet volunteer receive a certificate of appreciation for their participation

Volunteer Requirements

All interested individuals are required to register to participate in the HPITC are. The volunteer registration system provided administrators with the ability to monitor completion of volunteer requirements using qualification fields, collect signed liability/release waivers, and provide volunteers access to the required volunteer training.

Volunteer Eligibility Included:

- Submit signed Liability Release form
- Participate in mandatory training (general count or youth count)
- · Pass training quiz
- Confirm use of smartphone or mobile device with ability to download Survey123
- · Ability to walk and/or stand for an extended period
- At least 18 years old or 16-17 years old with an accompanying adult
- Follow all safety precautions discussed during the training

Volunteer Communication

To ensure effective communication, updates were generated through the registered volunteer system. Volunteers were able to email the planning team questions or specific requests. Email reminders were sent to individuals missing information or those who had not completed the volunteer requirements. If at any time a participant was no longer available to volunteer, they were able to request that their registration be removed from the list. Upon registration, volunteers were asked to select two cities where they would like to volunteer. Volunteers received their assignment including their deployment site address and check-in time two weeks prior to the count.

Volunteer Trainings

All participating volunteers were required to receive a training to promote uniformity and ensure highquality data collection. Volunteers completed an online training and testing before obtaining access to the 2023 HPITC survey published on ESRI Survey123. A QR code was created and provided to volunteers for quick access and to ensure the correct survey was used.

Volunteer Training Objectives:

- Understand the importance of the homeless count
- · Learn how the count is implemented
- · What to expect and how to prepare for the count
- · Learn the roles of the team
- Become familiar with the surveys and how to navigate them using the Survey123 app
- · Learn how to stay safe throughout the process
- How to download and complete the survey tool accurately



Volunteer Participation

As in previous years, the community came out in support of the HPITC resulting in almost 1,300 registrations received. However, during the recruitment process, some volunteers asked to be removed from the volunteer list due to unavailability or they were removed because they did not complete the volunteer requirements. Weeks prior to the count, coordinators assigned over 1,000 volunteers to support various count activities and events.

During the week of the count, **909 individuals** (768 general count; 141 youth count) assisted in conducting the 2023 homeless count. This was a **26% increase**, **compared to 2022**, in the total number of volunteers participating in the unsheltered count.

2023 Volunteer Type	General Count	Youth Count	All Volunteers
City Staff	103	4	107
Community Service Provider	12	3	15
Community Volunteer	46	9	55
County Staff	257	67	324
Law Enforcement	182	0	182
Non-Profit Agency	74	16	90
School District/College/University	11	10	21
Street Outreach Team	83	15	98
Youth Service Provider	0	17	17
Total	768	141	909

Incentives

The unsheltered HPITC provides the community an opportunity to interact with and engage unsheltered individuals. In 2023, **2,400 incentives** were prepared and distributed to all deployment sites, youth events, and HPITC activity during the week of the homeless count. All incentives were sponsored by Riverside County's <u>Community Action Partnership</u>. Volunteers carry incentive bags to give to their neighbors experiencing homelessness to help break the ice and possibly motive the person to respond to the survey. Incentives are also used to thank the person being interviewed for their time and responses. Incentives were packed in a sturdy backpack and included the following items:

- Beanie
- Gloves
- Socks
- · Reusable fork/spoon
- Blanket
- · Hand warmer
- Poncho
- Manicure set
- · Travel-sized, hygiene items:
 - Shampoo/ conditioner
 - Feminine hygiene products
 - Toothbrush/ toothpaste
 - Lotion
 - Soap





Above: Incentive backpacks provided to any unsheltered person encountered during the HPITC

Community Resource Guide

As part of the *More Than A Count* initiative, all incentive backpacks included a resource guide that provided contact information to emergency shelters, Youth Opportunity Centers, and various county departments.

	Youth Supp	lort		
	For referrals to Social Servic	esdial211		
-	Youth Opportunity	Centers		
	Hernet	951-765-0917		
	Indio	760-775-2887		
	Lake Elsinore	951-471-8415	Patho	
	Moreno Valley	951-653-1311	Coach	
\mathbb{N}	Riverside	951-683-9622	Martha	
			Valley	
	What's Up? SafeHk	City N		
	toll-free 844-204-0880			
	OR download app			
			Are	
	Operation Safe House			
	800-561-6944.24h	rHotline		
	Suicide & Crisis Lifelin	ne Dial 988		
	Transitional Age Youth Drop-in Centers			
	Stepping Stone - Riverside	951-955-9800	ava	
	Arena - Perris	951-940-6755		
/	Desert Flow - La Quinta	760-863-7970	ø	
			- An	



COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE RESOURCE GUIDE





PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION | PAGE 34

Homeless Youth Point-in-Time Count

In 2023, the YPITC coordinator is an experienced formerly homeless youth advocate and CoC staff member. The coordinator worked with a YPITC planning team to plan and implement an accurate youth count. As in previous years, Operation SafeHouse (OSH) served as a co-lead agency in the YPITC planning efforts. OSH is a non-profit organization that offers emergency shelter and transitional living for youth in Riverside County. OSH focuses on servicing homeless youth and youth in crisis between the ages of 11 and 24.

The YPITC followed the same methodology as the general count. However, due to the unique nature of young adults experiencing homelessness or housing instability, youth count planning meetings were facilitated to strategize and plan in the months leading up to the youth count. These planning sessions included all aspects of the youth count and worked to:

- Identify and recruit youth-friendly volunteers
- Create canvasing teams familiar with the city and unsheltered youth hot spots
- Recruit experienced individuals with strong knowledge of or who worked directly with youth experiencing homelessness to allow for easier rapport building when surveying
- Ensure that youth volunteers understood the day-to-day challenges and trends homeless youth face to be effective on the streets

Youth Deployment Sites

Deployment sites are designated locations that serve as a base of operations for the street-based count. Each youth deployment site was led by an individual with street outreach experience and familiarity with hotspots and areas where youth tend to congregate. Site leads were assigned to coordinate activities in the same deployment site through the duration of the count to lessen the risk of duplication.

Youth Involvement

The YPITC provides an opportunity to raise awareness about youth experiencing housing instability and facing homelessness. The YPITC planning team worked closely with the CoC's Youth Advisory Committee (YAC) and Youth Action Board (YAB) to obtain their input in recruiting youth friendly volunteers, partnering with agencies servicing youth, and best practices in engaging homeless youth on the day of the count.



Above: Youth Count volunteer check in table in the City of Moreno Valley
RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

Come and Be Connected Events for Youth

The youth count includes *Come and Be Connected* events for unsheltered Transition Age Youth (TAY) 18-24 experiencing housing instability or who are at risk of homelessness. These events are promoted as community resource fairs attended by representatives from various organizations (non-profits, housing navigators, county departments who assist youth with CalFresh, Medi-Cal, and CalWORKS applications, and rapid rehousing programs). The purpose of the events is to address the varying needs of youth while determining if youth in attendance meet the YPITC criteria for homelessness. These events also serve to bring community awareness about the multitude of issues relating to youth homelessness and elevate the YPITC to *More Than a Count*.

To ensure accessibility to the events, all five County of Riverside Supervisorial Districts hosted a *Come and Be Connected* youth event.

Youth Opportunity Centers

- Youth Opportunity Center (City of Indio)
- California Family Life Center, Planet Youth (City of Lake Elsinore)
- California Family Life Center (City of Riverside)
- California Family Life Center, Empower Youth Center (City of Hemet)



The YPITC planning team obtains input from the Youth Advisory Committee, Youth Action Board, and the County's Youth Commission and Youth Advisory Council to coordinate *Come and Be Connected* events and ensure the following:

Location: Youth Opportunity Centers are a natural location for events and due to on-going working relationships center directors are supportive of YPITC efforts.

Dates and Time: coordinators work with center directors to identify a date and time that works best for the center. The time chosen for all events is 2pm to 6pm to increase attendance of youth attending school or working.

Promotion: an event promotion flyer is distributed to CoC partners, Youth Advisory Committee, school liaisons, and all county employees through email. Flyers are distributed at parks, community centers, and physical street distribution. The events are promoted at committee meetings and through social media.

Vendors: the committee identified a diverse group of 7-10 vendors per event that provided housing, social services, transitional living programs, rapid rehousing, reproductive health, mental health services, domestic violence, and rehabilitation services.

Event Coordinators: each event is assigned two event coordinators to work with the center director and plan the event. Coordinators ensure all materials including food and refreshments, volunteer sign in sheets, and vendors arrive to the site.

Orientation: an orientation is scheduled for each event and is attended by the center directors and staff, event coordinators and planning team to discuss logistics and confirm roles and responsibilities.

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

Youth Count Partners and Supporters

The YPITC requires the complete support and participation from community partners including youth service providers, street outreach teams, and community volunteers.

- Operation SafeHouse
- Partners Against Violence
- Riverside Life Services
- · Families Living with AIDS Care Center
- Central Neighborhood Health Foundation
- Rainbow Pride Youth Alliance
- HomeConnect
- Housing and Workforce Solutions (HWS) Department - Community Action Partnership (CAP): Utility Bill Assistance
- Housing and Workforce Solutions (HWS) Department - Housing Authority, Special Programs Team
- Housing and Workforce Solutions (HWS) Department - Workforce Development Division
- Riverside County Office of Education Carespaces
- Catholic Charities
- Lighthouse Social Service Centers
- · Planned Parenthood
- Molina Health Care
- · Addiction Therapeutic Services
- · Planned Parenthood Oak Grove Center
- Riverside University Health System Public Health
- Queer Works
- Department of Public Social Services
- California Family Life Center (CFLC)
- Youth Community Corps (YCC) Project
- RU Health HIV/STD Program
- Riverside County Department of Animal Services
- Riverside Area Rape Crisis Center
- Lighthouse Baptist Church (Moreno Valley)
- Alternatives to Domestic Violence
- Trauma Recovery Center
- Olive Crest
- Aspirnet
- Starting Over Inc.

Youth Count Support and Donations:

- Inland Empire Health Plan (IEHP)
- Molina HealthCare
- La Sierra University Church
- The Litas Women's Biker Group
- RUHS BH Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Program
- RUHS Public Health
- HIV/STD Program
- AXIS Foundation
- Queer Works
- RIVCO Facilities Management
- RUHS PH Family Planning Program
- · Val Verde School District
- Medical Health Operational Area Coordinator (MHOAC)
- Planned Parenthood
- RUHS BH HHope Program (HomeConnect)



Above: City of Jurupa Valley volunteers including IEHP staff supporting the YPITC

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The CoC HPITC planning team would like to express their gratitude to the people in our community, network of non-profit organizations, faith based-communities, cities, county staff (including homeless outreach teams), and law enforcement partners for their relentless support and participation in the 2023 HPITC and Survey.

The CoC HPITC planning team extends their gratitude to the 909 volunteers who gave their time on the day and week of the count. Conducting a full-count in the fourth largest county in California, by size, is no small endeavor. We appreciate your time and energy, as well as your compassion for our community's neighbors experiencing homelessness.

THANK YOU TO ALL OF OUR DEDICATED PARTNERS AND SUPPORTERS. ADDRESSING HOMELESSNESS IS NOT POSSIBLE WITHOUT YOU!



We would like to acknowledge the guidance and support received from the **Board of** Supervisors and District Legislative Staff and Assistants.

|--|

A sincere thank you for the support and partnership with the **Hub for Urban Initiatives** team that led the data analysis and development of the 2023 HPIT data report.

Thank you to the **Riverside County Information Technology (RCIT) team** for their assistance in creating and publishing the HPITC survey tool and developing and designing the *MoreThanACount*.org website.



Our appreciation goes to the **County of Riverside Department of Public Health** who shared their expertise and knowledge about implementing a safe unsheltered homeless count.



We would like to acknowledge the assistance of the **Department Public Social Services** (**DPSS**) and their team of Public Information Specialists who assisted in promoting the homeless count in the community, a social media tool kit, and promotional materials.



A special thanks to the **County Executive Office** for their assistance with media and community engagement.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

City and law enforcement leaders are vital to the success of the HPITC. They are involved in all aspects of the planning, coordination, and implementation of the street-based count in their respective cities. Volunteers and staff are always appreciative to see law enforcement presence during the homeless count.

A heartfelt thank you to the city leaders, points-of-contacts, and city staff for their roles in increasing homelessness awareness by recruiting volunteers and promoting the HPITC in their community. Deployment site leaders do an exceptional job coordinating all count-related activities.



Riverside County Cities Participating in the HPITC:

- City of Banning
- City of Beaumont
- City of Blythe
- City of Calimesa
- City of Canyon Lake
- Cathedral City
- City of Coachella
- City of Corona
- City of Desert Hot Springs
- City of Eastvale

- City of Hemet
- City of Indian Wells
- City of Indio
- City of Jurupa Valley
- City of La Quinta
- City of Lake Elsinore
- City of Menifee
- City of Moreno Valley
- City of Murrieta
- City of Norco

- City of Palm Desert
- City of Palm Springs
- City of Perris
- City of Rancho Mirage
- City of Riverside
- City of San Jacinto
- City of Temecula
- City of Wildomar

A special thanks to the **Riverside Sheriff's Office** (**RSO**) Homeless Outreach Team. Their committed participation in community planning meetings, coordination of the unincorporated area count, and involvement is invaluable.

Thank you to all county staff for their participation including the Department of Housing and Workforce Solution (HWS) Administrative Office and Continuum of Care Division staff that served to plan and implement the 2023 HPITC.





ENGAGE. ENCOURAGE. EQUIP.

HOUSING AND

SOLUTIONS

PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION | PAGE 39

APPENDIX A GLOSSARY

APPENDIX | PAGE 41

RIVERSIDE PITC REPORT FOR 2023

RIVERSIDE COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE (CoC)

The planning body that coordinates county policies, strategies, and activities toward ending homelessness throughout Riverside County and its 28 cities. The CoC is a network of representatives from public and private agencies serving the homeless population, city and county representatives, law enforcement, faith-based organizations, advocates, school districts, colleges and universities, homeless and formerly homeless individuals, and other community residents.

YAC/YAB and Youth Commission

Youth Advisory Committee (YAC)

YAC is made up of 40-50 youth service providers and advises the CoC on issues and strategic planning activities related to ending youth homelessness. YAC agencies were recruited to serve as a designated deployment site and/or vendors at the *Come and Be Connected* events, to assist with a youth specific incentive drive, to recruit youth they serve to participate in the YPITC, and to register and volunteer for the homeless youth count.

Youth Action Board (YAB)

YAB is composed of homeless and formerly homeless youth between the ages of 18 and 24. YAB members share their voice to advocate for homeless youth and their input is taken into consideration in policymaking decisions of the CoC. YAB members are instrumental in helping shape policies that relate to ending youth homelessness. They serve as the experts that review and provide input on youth project applications and serve as ambassadors to strengthen relationships within the community and promote youth activism in governmental affairs. YAB members attended community planning meetings and activities such as an incentive drive for youth. Youth Action Board members participated in the street-based youth count and Come and Be Connected events.

Riverside County Youth Commission

The Riverside County Youth Commission has established itself as a strong supporter of the YPITC. Each of the 5 County Supervisorial District supports a Youth Advisory Council. The Council is intended for high school students in each district who wish to serve their communities. The Youth Commission consists of all 5 District's Youth Advisory Councils who make recommendations to the County of Riverside Board of Supervisors about youth related issues. The YPITC planning team invited the Council to participate in the homeless youth count and support the Come and Be Connected events. The Commissioners agreed unanimously to support YPITC efforts.



RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

APPENDIX B CITY SUMMARY TABLES

Appendix | Page 42

CITY OF BANNING		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
40	50	90

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	26	65%
Observed	14	35%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	1	3%
Youth (18-24)	2	5%
Adults (25-34)	11	28%
Adults (35-44)	11	28%
Adults (45-54)	11	28%
Adults (55-64)	4	10%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	40	1
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	7	18%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	3	8%
Multiple Races	0	0%
White	30	75%
Total	40	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	18	45%
Non- Hispanic	22	55%
Total	40	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	7	18%
Male	33	83%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender (Female)	0	0%
Transgender (Male)	0	0%
Total	40	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	5	19%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	1	4%
Park	0	0%
Street	13	50%
Tent/Shed	3	12%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	4	15%
Other	0	0%
Total	26	100%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	4	15%
Domestic Violence	0	0%

Jail Release	1	4%
Lack of Income	10	38%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	8%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	2	8%
Unemployment	4	15%
Other	3	12%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	6	23%
Domestic Violence	1	4%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	9	35%
Physical Disability	9	35%
PTSD	8	31%
Substance Abuse	9	35%
Traumatic Brain Injury	9	35%
Developmental Disability	7	27%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	4%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	15	58%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	17	65%
Pet Owner	3	12%
Foster Care Experience	1	4%
Formerly Incarcerated	10	38%
Health Insurance Coverage	18	69%
Veterans (extrapolated)	2	5%

CITY OF BEAUMONT		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
33	0	33

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	25	76%
Observed	8	24%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	3%
Adults (25-34)	8	24%
Adults (35-44)	13	39%
Adults (45-54)	8	24%
Adults (55-64)	2	6%
Adults (65+)	1	3%
Total	33	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	3%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	5	15%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	3%
Multiple Races	1	3%
White	25	76%
Total	33	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	8	24%
Non- Hispanic	25	76%
Total	33	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	8	24%
Male	25	76%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	33	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	4%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	2	8%
Park	0	0%
Street	9	36%
Tent/Shed	10	40%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	3	12%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	9	36%
Domestic Violence	1	4%
Jail Release	1	4%
Lack of Income	3	12%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	8%
Runaway	1	4%
Substance Abuse	2	8%
Unemployment	2	8%
Other	3	12%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	4	16%
Domestic Violence	3	12%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	4	16%
Physical Disability	7	28%
PTSD	8	32%
Substance Abuse	11	44%
Traumatic Brain Injury	3	12%
Developmental Disability	1	4%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	15	60%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	8	32%
Pet Owner	5	20%
Foster Care Experience	1	4%
Formerly Incarcerated	5	20%
Health Insurance Coverage	17	68%
Veterans (extrapolated)	1	3%

CITY OF BLYTHE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
105	7	112

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	47	45%
Observed	58	55%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	11	10%
Adults (25-34)	20	19%
Adults (35-44)	32	30%
Adults (45-54)	35	33%
Adults (55-64)	6	6%
Adults (65+)	1	1%
Total	105	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	3	3%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	13	12%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	10	10%
White	79	75%
Total	105	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	31	30%
Non- Hispanic	74	70%
Total	105	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	32	30%
Male	72	69%
No Single Gender	1	1%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	105	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	7	15%
Bus Station	1	2%
Encampment	7	15%
Park	4	9%
Street	15	32%
Tent/Shed	5	11%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	2%

Under Bridge	2	4%
Vehicle	5	11%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	7	15%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	2	4%
Lack of Income	10	21%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	1	2%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	9	19%
Unemployment	5	11%
Other	11	23%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	8	17%
Domestic Violence	4	9%
HIV AIDS	2	4%
Mental Health Issue	11	23%
Physical Disability	14	30%
PTSD	14	30%
Substance Abuse	22	47%
Traumatic Brain Injury	7	15%
Developmental Disability	7	15%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	28	60%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	12	26%
Pet Owner	10	21%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	5	11%
Health Insurance Coverage	24	51%
Veterans (extrapolated)	2	2%

CITY OF CALIMESA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
8	0	8

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	5	63%
Observed	3	38%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	0	0%
Adults (35-44)	0	0%
Adults (45-54)	3	38%
Adults (55-64)	3	38%
Adults (65+)	2	25%
Total	8	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	0	0%
White	8	100%
Total	8	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	2	25%
Non- Hispanic	6	75%
Total	8	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	4	50%
Male	4	50%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Total	8	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	0	0%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	1	20%

Vehicle	4	80%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	2	40%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	3	60%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	0	0%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	2	40%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	0	0%
Physical Disability	1	20%
PTSD	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	1	20%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	2	40%
Pet Owner	3	60%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	0	0%
Health Insurance Coverage	5	100%
Veterans (extrapolated)	2	25%

CITY OF CATHERDAL CITY		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
40	5	45

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	24	60%
Observed	16	40%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	3%
Adults (25-34)	5	13%
Adults (35-44)	13	33%
Adults (45-54)	9	23%
Adults (55-64)	9	23%
Adults (65+)	3	8%
Total	40	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	5	13%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	11	28%
White	24	60%
Total	40	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	14	35%
Non- Hispanic	26	65%
Total	40	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	8	20%
Male	31	78%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	1	3%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	40	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	4%
Bus Station	1	4%
Encampment	2	8%
Park	3	13%
Street	7	29%
Tent/Shed	4	17%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	2	8%
Vehicle	4	17%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	2	8%
Domestic Violence	1	4%
Jail Release	1	4%
Lack of Income	5	21%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	1	4%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	3	13%
Unemployment	1	4%
Other	4	17%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	1	4%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	2	8%
Physical Disability	1	4%
PTSD	6	25%
Substance Abuse	7	29%
Traumatic Brain Injury	3	13%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	9	38%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	5	21%
Pet Owner	1	4%
Foster Care Experience	1	4%
Formerly Incarcerated	4	17%
Health Insurance Coverage	5	21%
Veterans (extrapolated)	6	15%

CITY OF COACHELLA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
67	7	74

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	49	73%
Observed	18	27%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	7	10%
Adults (25-34)	13	19%
Adults (35-44)	16	24%
Adults (45-54)	14	21%
Adults (55-64)	13	19%
Adults (65+)	4	6%
Total	67	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	1%
Asian, Asian American	6	9%
Black, African American, African	6	9%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	1%
Multiple Races	14	21%
White	39	58%
Total	67	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	43	64%
Non- Hispanic	24	36%
Total	67	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	21	31%
Male	45	67%
No Single Gender (other)	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	1	1%
Total	67	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	4	8%
Bus Station	1	2%
Encampment	5	10%
Park	3	6%
Street	12	24%
Tent/Shed	16	33%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	2	4%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	6	12%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Family Disruption	16	33%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	9	18%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	3	6%
Runaway	3	6%
Substance Abuse	1	2%
Unemployment	10	20%
Other	5	10%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	12	24%
Domestic Violence	3	6%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	13	27%
Physical Disability	12	24%
PTSD	12	24%
Substance Abuse	17	35%
Traumatic Brain Injury	16	33%
Developmental Disability	7	14%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on	22	470/
qualifying responses)	23	47%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	21	43%
Pet Owner	11	22%
Foster Care Experience	1	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	9	18%
Health Insurance Coverage	32	65%
Veterans (extrapolated)	3	4%

CITY OF CORONA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
65	50	115

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	40	62%
Observed	25	38%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	2	3%
Youth (18-24)	8	12%
Adults (25-34)	14	22%
Adults (35-44)	10	15%
Adults (45-54)	14	22%
Adults (55-64)	14	22%
Adults (65+)	3	5%
Total	65	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	2%
Asian, Asian American	1	2%
Black, African American, African	2	3%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	2%
Multiple Races	12	18%
White	48	74%
Total	65	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	26	40%
Non- Hispanic	39	60%
Total	65	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	17	26%
Male	47	72%
No Single Gender (other)	1	2%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	65	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	5	13%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	3	8%
Park	2	5%
Street	21	53%
Tent/Shed	4	10%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	5	13%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	13	33%
Domestic Violence	1	3%
Jail Release	3	8%
Lack of Income	10	25%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	3	8%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	3	8%
Other	5	13%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	6	15%
Domestic Violence	2	5%
HIV AIDS	1	3%
Mental Health Issue	12	30%
Physical Disability	8	20%
PTSD	16	40%
Substance Abuse	12	30%
Traumatic Brain Injury	6	15%
Developmental Disability	5	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	22	55%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	20	50%
Pet Owner	7	18%
Foster Care Experience	1	3%
Formerly Incarcerated	6	15%
Health Insurance Coverage	21	53%
Veterans (extrapolated)	6	9%

CITY OF DESERT HOT SPRINGS		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
107	15	122

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	48	45%
Observed	59	55%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	7	7%
Adults (25-34)	12	11%
Adults (35-44)	28	26%
Adults (45-54)	25	23%
Adults (55-64)	25	23%
Adults (65+)	10	9%
Total	107	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	9	8%
Asian, Asian American	3	3%
Black, African American, African	13	12%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	2	2%
Multiple Races	14	13%
White	66	62%
Total	107	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	47	44%
Non- Hispanic	60	56%
Total	107	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	29	27%
Male	78	73%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	107	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	2	4%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	15	31%
Park	0	0%
Street	11	23%
Tent/Shed	5	10%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	15	31%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	9	19%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	2	4%
Lack of Income	15	31%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	3	6%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	3	6%
Unemployment	7	15%
Other	4	8%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	6	13%
Domestic Violence	3	6%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	5	10%
Physical Disability	8	17%
PTSD	5	10%
Substance Abuse	11	23%
Traumatic Brain Injury	3	6%
Developmental Disability	6	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	12	25%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	27	56%
Pet Owner	13	27%
Foster Care Experience	1	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	3	6%
Health Insurance Coverage	24	50%
Veterans (extrapolated)	15	14%

CITY OF EASTVALE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
7	18	25

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	2	29%
Observed	5	71%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	4	57%
Adults (35-44)	0	0%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-64)	3	43%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	7	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	2	29%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	2	29%
White	3	43%
Total	7	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	0	0%
Non- Hispanic	7	100%
Total	7	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	2	29%
Male	5	71%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	7	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	50%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	1	50%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	1	50%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	1	50%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	0	0%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	0	0%
Physical Disability	1	50%
PTSD	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	1	50%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	1	50%
Pet Owner	0	0%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	1	50%
Health Insurance Coverage	1	50%
Veterans (extrapolated)	3	43%

CITY OF HEMET	Г	
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
207	66	273

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	98	47%
Observed	109	53%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	1	0%
Youth (18-24)	20	10%
Adults (25-34)	43	21%
Adults (35-44)	71	34%
Adults (45-54)	38	18%
Adults (55-64)	26	13%
Adults (65+)	8	4%
Total	207	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	4	2%
Asian, Asian American	5	2%
Black, African American, African	42	20%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	3	1%
Multiple Races	32	15%
White	121	58%
Total	207	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	61	29%
Non- Hispanic	146	71%
Total	207	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	52	25%
Male	153	74%
No Single Gender	2	1%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	207	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	24	24%
Bus Station	1	1%
Encampment	7	7%
Park	2	2%
Street	42	43%
Tent/Shed	12	12%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	4	4%
Vehicle	6	6%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	33	34%
Domestic Violence	1	1%
Jail Release	5	5%
Lack of Income	18	18%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	4	4%
Runaway	2	2%
Substance Abuse	7	7%
Unemployment	9	9%
Other	14	14%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	22	22%
Domestic Violence	10	10%
HIV AIDS	1	1%
Mental Health Issue	23	23%
Physical Disability	23	23%
PTSD	29	30%
Substance Abuse	39	40%
Traumatic Brain Injury	20	20%
Developmental Disability	14	14%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	1%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	52	53%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	29	30%
Pet Owner	17	17%
Foster Care Experience	1	1%
Formerly Incarcerated	20	20%
Health Insurance Coverage	62	63%
Veterans (extrapolated)	18	9%

CITY OF INDIO		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
108	319	427

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	76	70%
Observed	32	30%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	4	4%
Adults (25-34)	21	19%
Adults (35-44)	32	30%
Adults (45-54)	21	19%
Adults (55-64)	17	16%
Adults (65+)	13	12%
Total	108	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	12	11%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	10	9%
White	86	80%
Total	108	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	63	58%
Non- Hispanic	45	42%
Total	108	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	27	25%
Male	81	75%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	108	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	5	7%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	23	30%
Park	5	7%
Street	21	28%
Tent/Shed	12	16%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	3	4%
Vehicle	7	9%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	21	28%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	4	5%
Lack of Income	13	17%
Medical Discharge	1	1%
Mental Illness	2	3%
Runaway	1	1%
Substance Abuse	9	12%
Unemployment	12	16%
Other	9	12%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	11	14%
Domestic Violence	6	8%
HIV AIDS	1	1%
Mental Health Issue	13	17%
Physical Disability	18	24%
PTSD	18	24%
Substance Abuse	32	42%
Traumatic Brain Injury	9	12%
Developmental Disability	10	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	33	43%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	32	42%
Pet Owner	10	13%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	11	14%
Health Insurance Coverage	50	66%
Veterans (extrapolated)	9	8%

CITY OF JURUPA VALLEY		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
79	3	82

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	58	73%
Observed	21	27%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	1	1%
Youth (18-24)	2	3%
Adults (25-34)	8	10%
Adults (35-44)	19	24%
Adults (45-54)	24	30%
Adults (55-64)	21	27%
Adults (65+)	4	5%
Total	79	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	1%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	5	6%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	8	10%
White	65	82%
Total	79	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	36	46%
Non- Hispanic	43	54%
Total	79	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	26	33%
Male	53	67%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	79	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	2	3%
Bus Station	1	2%
Encampment	29	50%
Park	0	0%
Street	3	5%
Tent/Shed	5	9%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	18	31%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	18	31%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	3	5%
Lack of Income	7	12%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	1	2%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	7	12%
Unemployment	7	12%
Other	12	21%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	20	34%
Domestic Violence	2	3%
HIV AIDS	2	3%
Mental Health Issue	11	19%
Physical Disability	21	36%
PTSD	19	33%
Substance Abuse	22	38%
Traumatic Brain Injury	11	19%
Developmental Disability	8	14%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	36	62%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	13	22%
Pet Owner	34	59%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	9	16%
Health Insurance Coverage	36	62%
Veterans (extrapolated)	3	4%

CITY OF LA QUINTA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
4	0	4

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	2	50%
Observed	2	50%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	2	50%
Adults (35-44)	0	0%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-64)	2	50%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	4	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	1	25%
White	3	75%
Total	4	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	1	25%
Non- Hispanic	3	75%
Total	4	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	3	75%
Male	1	25%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	4	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	50%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	1	50%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	1	50%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	0	0%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	1	50%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	0	0%
Physical Disability	0	0%
PTSD	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	0	0%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	2	100%
Pet Owner	0	0%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	0	0%
Health Insurance Coverage	1	50%
Veterans (extrapolated)	0	0%

CITY OF LAKE ELSINORE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
78	32	110

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	52	67%
Observed	26	33%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	9	12%
Adults (25-34)	25	32%
Adults (35-44)	21	27%
Adults (45-54)	8	10%
Adults (55-64)	8	10%
Adults (65+)	7	9%
Total	78	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	5	6%
Asian, Asian American	2	3%
Black, African American, African	7	9%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	6	8%
White	58	74%
Total	78	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	32	41%
Non- Hispanic	46	59%
Total	78	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	22	28%
Male	54	69%
No Single Gender	1	1%
Questioning	1	1%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	78	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	3	6%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	13	25%
Park	3	6%
Street	14	27%
Tent/Shed	1	2%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	2	4%
Vehicle	16	31%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	13	25%
Domestic Violence	1	2%
Jail Release	3	6%
Lack of Income	12	23%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	4	8%
Runaway	2	4%
Substance Abuse	5	10%
Unemployment	7	13%
Other	4	8%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	15	29%
Domestic Violence	7	13%
HIV AIDS	1	2%
Mental Health Issue	20	38%
Physical Disability	17	33%
PTSD	16	31%
Substance Abuse	22	42%
Traumatic Brain Injury	11	21%
Developmental Disability	10	19%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on	20	F 09/
qualifying responses)	26	50%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	27	52%
Pet Owner	7	13%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	19	37%
Health Insurance Coverage	33	63%
Veterans (extrapolated)	5	6%

CITY OF MENIFEE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
25	0	25

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	17	68%
Observed	8	32%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	4%
Adults (25-34)	3	12%
Adults (35-44)	12	48%
Adults (45-54)	3	12%
Adults (55-64)	5	20%
Adults (65+)	1	4%
Total	25	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	4%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	4	16%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	4%
Multiple Races	1	4%
White	18	72%
Total	25	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	1	4%
Non- Hispanic	24	96%
Total	25	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	10	40%
Male	15	60%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	25	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	3	18%
Park	1	6%
Street	6	35%
Tent/Shed	1	6%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	1	6%
--	----	------------------
Vehicle	5	29%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	2	12%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	1	6%
Lack of Income	3	18%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	1	6%
Substance Abuse	3	18%
Unemployment	3	18%
Other	2	12%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	1	6%
Domestic Violence	2	12%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	3	18%
Physical Disability	2	12%
PTSD	7	41%
Substance Abuse	6	35%
Traumatic Brain Injury	2	12%
Developmental Disability	1	6%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	8	47%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	4	24%
Pet Owner	2	12%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	2	12%
Health Insurance Coverage	14	82%
Veterans (extrapolated)	3	12%

CITY OF MORENO VALLEY		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
77	24	101

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	56	73%
Observed	21	27%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	14	18%
Adults (25-34)	18	23%
Adults (35-44)	20	26%
Adults (45-54)	15	19%
Adults (55-64)	7	9%
Adults (65+)	3	4%
Total	77	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	1	1%
Black, African American, African	24	31%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	11	14%
White	41	53%
Total	77	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	32	42%
Non- Hispanic	45	58%
Total	77	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	24	31%
Male	53	69%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	77	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	4	7%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	4	7%
Park	2	4%
Street	25	45%
Tent/Shed	4	7%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	1	2%
Vehicle	16	29%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	16	29%
Domestic Violence	5	9%
Jail Release	1	2%
Lack of Income	11	20%
Medical Discharge	1	2%
Mental Illness	2	4%
Runaway	1	2%
Substance Abuse	1	2%
Unemployment	3	5%
Other	9	16%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	10	18%
Domestic Violence	5	9%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	10	18%
Physical Disability	2	4%
PTSD	19	34%
Substance Abuse	20	36%
Traumatic Brain Injury	6	11%
Developmental Disability	1	2%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	25	45%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	23	41%
Pet Owner	6	11%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	11	20%
Health Insurance Coverage	39	70%
Veterans (extrapolated)	9	12%

CITY OF MURRIETA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
33	132	165

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	25	76%
Observed	8	24%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	4	12%
Adults (25-34)	3	9%
Adults (35-44)	8	24%
Adults (45-54)	6	18%
Adults (55-64)	9	27%
Adults (65+)	3	9%
Total	33	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	3	9%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	3	9%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	3%
Multiple Races	2	6%
White	24	73%
Total	33	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	5	15%
Non- Hispanic	28	85%
Total	33	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	13	39%
Male	19	58%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	1	3%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	33	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	3	12%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	2	8%
Park	1	4%
Street	3	12%
Tent/Shed	4	16%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	1	4%

Vehicle	11	44%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	4	16%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	2	8%
Lack of Income	10	40%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	8%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	2	8%
Unemployment	1	4%
Other	3	12%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	5	20%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	3	12%
Physical Disability	5	20%
PTSD	6	24%
Substance Abuse	5	20%
Traumatic Brain Injury	2	8%
Developmental Disability	3	12%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	9	36%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	11	44%
Pet Owner	2	8%
Foster Care Experience	3	12%
Formerly Incarcerated	2	8%
Health Insurance Coverage	17	68%
Veterans (extrapolated)	1	3%

CITY OF NORCO)	
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
13	9	22

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	9	69%
Observed	4	31%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	3	23%
Adults (25-34)	3	23%
Adults (35-44)	3	23%
Adults (45-54)	3	23%
Adults (55-64)	1	8%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	13	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	0	0%
White	13	100%
Total	13	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	4	31%
Non- Hispanic	9	69%
Total	13	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	0	0%
Male	12	92%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	1	8%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	13	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	11%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	4	44%
Tent/Shed	1	11%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	3	33%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	3	33%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	5	56%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	1	11%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	1	11%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	3	33%
Physical Disability	5	56%
PTSD	6	67%
Substance Abuse	5	56%
Traumatic Brain Injury	2	22%
Developmental Disability	3	33%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	4	44%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	4	44%
Pet Owner	0	0%
Foster Care Experience	1	11%
Formerly Incarcerated	2	22%
Health Insurance Coverage	7	78%
Veterans (extrapolated)	0	0%

CITY OF PALM DESERT		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
39	0	39

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	32	82%
Observed	7	18%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	3%
Adults (25-34)	8	21%
Adults (35-44)	13	33%
Adults (45-54)	12	31%
Adults (55-64)	4	10%
Adults (65+)	1	3%
Total	39	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	3	8%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	5	13%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	3%
Multiple Races	3	8%
White	27	69%
Total	39	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	11	28%
Non- Hispanic	28	72%
Total	39	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	12	31%
Male	27	69%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	39	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	3%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	2	6%
Park	0	0%
Street	14	44%
Tent/Shed	3	9%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	2	6%
Vehicle	10	31%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	7	22%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	7	22%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	1	3%
Substance Abuse	5	16%
Unemployment	3	9%
Other	7	22%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	0	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	9	28%
Domestic Violence	1	3%
HIV AIDS	2	6%
Mental Health Issue	9	28%
Physical Disability	10	31%
PTSD	12	38%
Substance Abuse	9	28%
Traumatic Brain Injury	5	16%
Developmental Disability	4	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	17	53%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	8	25%
Pet Owner	5	16%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	5	16%
Health Insurance Coverage	27	84%
Veterans (extrapolated)	3	8%

CITY OF PALM SPRINGS		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
239	29	268

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	97	41%
Observed	142	59%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	10	4%
Adults (25-34)	44	18%
Adults (35-44)	38	16%
Adults (45-54)	67	28%
Adults (55-64)	67	28%
Adults (65+)	13	5%
Total	239	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	10	4%
Asian, Asian American	3	1%
Black, African American, African	31	13%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	27	11%
Multiple Races	2	1%
White	166	69%
Total	239	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	81	34%
Non- Hispanic	158	66%
Total	239	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	53	22%
Male	185	78%
No Single Gender	1	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	239	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	1%
Bus Station	2	2%
Encampment	15	15%
Park	4	4%
Street	40	41%
Tent/Shed	26	27%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	3	3%
Vehicle	5	5%
Other	1	1%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	22	23%
Domestic Violence	2	2%
Jail Release	4	4%
Lack of Income	18	19%
Medical Discharge	1	1%
Mental Illness	1	1%
Runaway	1	1%
Substance Abuse	13	13%
Unemployment	13	13%
Other	15	15%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	25	26%
Domestic Violence	6	6%
HIV AIDS	4	4%
Mental Health Issue	29	30%
Physical Disability	23	24%
PTSD	36	37%
Substance Abuse	33	34%
Traumatic Brain Injury	20	21%
Developmental Disability	18	19%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	50	52%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	33	34%
Pet Owner	19	20%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	9	9%
Health Insurance Coverage	71	73%
Veterans (extrapolated)	20	8%

CITY OF PERRIS		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
90	24	114

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	55	61%
Observed	35	39%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	2	2%
Youth (18-24)	11	12%
Adults (25-34)	25	28%
Adults (35-44)	14	16%
Adults (45-54)	14	16%
Adults (55-64)	21	23%
Adults (65+)	3	3%
Total	90	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	3	3%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	21	23%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	7	8%
White	59	66%
Total	90	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	50	56%
Non- Hispanic	40	44%
Total	90	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	24	27%
Male	66	73%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Total	90	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	1	2%
Encampment	8	15%
Park	1	2%
Street	15	27%
Tent/Shed	14	25%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	1	2%
Vehicle	15	27%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	11	20%
Domestic Violence	1	2%
Jail Release	1	2%
Lack of Income	8	15%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	4%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	2	4%
Unemployment	8	15%
Other	3	5%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	13	24%
Domestic Violence	5	9%
HIV AIDS	1	2%
Mental Health Issue	19	35%
Physical Disability	11	20%
PTSD	11	20%
Substance Abuse	18	33%
Traumatic Brain Injury	11	20%
Developmental Disability	9	16%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	2%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	32	58%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	28	51%
Pet Owner	17	31%
Foster Care Experience	1	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	17	31%
Health Insurance Coverage	43	78%
Veterans (extrapolated)	6	7%

CITY OF RANCHO MIRAGE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
3	0	3

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	3	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	0	0%
Adults (35-44)	3	100%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-64)	0	0%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	3	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	1	33%
White	2	67%
Total	3	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	0	0%
Non- Hispanic	3	100%
Total	3	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	1	33%
Male	2	67%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	3	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	33%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	2	67%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	0	0%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	2	67%
Other	1	33%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	1	33%
Mental Health Issue	0	0%
Physical Disability	0	0%
PTSD	0	0%
Substance Abuse	1	33%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	1	33%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	0	0%
Pet Owner	0	0%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	1	33%
Health Insurance Coverage	2	67%
Veterans (extrapolated)	0	0%

CITY OF RIVERSIDE		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
605	372	977

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	275	45%
Observed	330	55%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	6	1%
Youth (18-24)	36	6%
Adults (25-34)	119	20%
Adults (35-44)	133	22%
Adults (45-54)	156	26%
Adults (55-64)	109	18%
Adults (65+)	46	8%
Total	605	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	19	3%
Asian, Asian American	9	1%
Black, African American, African	142	23%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	2	0%
Multiple Races	30	5%
White	403	67%
Total	605	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	220	36%
Non- Hispanic	385	64%
Total	605	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	193	32%
Male	406	67%
No Single Gender	4	1%
Questioning	1	0%
Transgender Female	1	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	605	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	18	7%
Bus Station	4	1%
Encampment	31	11%
Park	21	8%
Street	116	42%
Tent/Shed	38	14%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	2	1%

Under Bridge	6	2%
Vehicle	39	14%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	70	25%
Domestic Violence	7	3%
Jail Release	17	6%
Lack of Income	44	16%
Medical Discharge	1	0%
Mental Illness	14	5%
Runaway	6	2%
Substance Abuse	20	7%
Unemployment	26	9%
Other	47	17%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	54	20%
Domestic Violence	21	8%
HIV AIDS	1	0%
Mental Health Issue	63	23%
Physical Disability	57	21%
PTSD	77	28%
Substance Abuse	85	31%
Traumatic Brain Injury	45	16%
Developmental Disability	37	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	127	46%
First Time Homeless (<i>self-report</i>)	82	30%
Pet Owner	49	18%
Foster Care Experience	5	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	47	17%
Health Insurance Coverage	173	63%
Veterans (extrapolated)	60	10%

CITY OF SAN JACINTO		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
120	24	144

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	66	55%
Observed	54	45%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	16	13%
Adults (25-34)	34	28%
Adults (35-44)	31	26%
Adults (45-54)	18	15%
Adults (55-64)	18	15%
Adults (65+)	3	3%
Total	120	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	2	2%
Asian, Asian American	1	1%
Black, African American, African	13	11%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	1%
Multiple Races	28	23%
White	75	63%
Total	120	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	28	23%
Non- Hispanic	92	77%
Total	120	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	35	29%
Male	85	71%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	120	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	2	3%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	23	35%
Park	2	3%
Street	20	30%
Tent/Shed	9	14%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	3	5%
Vehicle	7	11%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	29	44%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	4	6%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	3%
Runaway	1	2%
Substance Abuse	4	6%
Unemployment	8	12%
Other	14	21%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	19	29%
Domestic Violence	1	2%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	14	21%
Physical Disability	15	23%
PTSD	24	36%
Substance Abuse	22	33%
Traumatic Brain Injury	17	26%
Developmental Disability	12	18%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	29	44%
First Time Homeless <i>(self-report)</i>	21	32%
Pet Owner	13	20%
Foster Care Experience	2	3%
Formerly Incarcerated	19	29%
Health Insurance Coverage	45	68%
Veterans (extrapolated)	9	8%

CITY OF TEMECULA		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
35	38	73

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	35	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	15	43%
Adults (35-44)	11	31%
Adults (45-54)	1	3%
Adults (55-64)	6	17%
Adults (65+)	2	6%
Total	35	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	2	6%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	2	6%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	7	20%
White	24	69%
Total	35	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	11	31%
Non- Hispanic	24	69%
Total	35	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	5	14%
Male	30	86%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	35	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	2	6%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	7	20%
Park	0	0%
Street	17	49%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	2	6%
Vehicle	7	20%
Other		0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	9	26%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	6	17%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	4	11%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	8	23%
Unemployment	3	9%
Other	3	9%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	4	11%
Domestic Violence	1	3%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	13	37%
Physical Disability	6	17%
PTSD	5	14%
Substance Abuse	15	43%
Traumatic Brain Injury	6	17%
Developmental Disability	4	11%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	17	49%
First Time Homeless <i>(self-report)</i>	12	34%
Pet Owner	2	6%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	7	20%
Health Insurance Coverage	22	63%
Veterans (extrapolated)	0	0%

CITY OF WILDOMAR		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
10	36	46

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	9	90%
Observed	1	10%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	10%
Adults (25-34)	2	20%
Adults (35-44)	3	30%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-64)	3	30%
Adults (65+)	1	10%
Total	10	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	10%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	2	20%
Multiple Races	1	10%
White	6	60%
Total	10	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	5	50%
Non- Hispanic	5	50%
Total	10	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	2	20%
Male	8	80%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	10	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	11%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	8	89%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	4	44%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	2	22%
Unemployment	0	0%
Other	3	33%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	1	11%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	3	33%
Physical Disability	0	0%
PTSD	1	11%
Substance Abuse	3	33%
Traumatic Brain Injury	2	22%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	3	33%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	0	0%
Pet Owner	1	11%
Foster Care Experience	1	11%
Formerly Incarcerated	3	33%
Health Insurance Coverage	7	78%
Veterans (extrapolated)	1	10%

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

APPENDIX C UNINCORPORATED AREAS SUMMARY TABLES

Appendix | Page 95

UNINCORPORATED AREA 1		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
47	0	47

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	41	87%
Observed	6	13%
Age (Fully Exrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	7	15%
Adults (35-44)	16	34%
Adults (45-54)	7	15%
Adults (55-64)	14	30%
Adults (65+)	3	6%
Total	47	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	2%
Asian, Asian American	1	2%
Black, African American, African	9	19%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	2%
Multiple Races	7	15%
White	28	60%
Total	47	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	17	36%
Non- Hispanic	30	64%
Total	47	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	14	30%
Male	32	68%
No Single Gender	1	2%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	47	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	9	22%
Park	1	2%
Street	3	7%
Tent/Shed	9	22%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	2%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	18	44%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	8	20%
Domestic Violence	1	2%
Jail Release	1	2%
Lack of Income	9	22%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	5%
Runaway	1	2%
Substance Abuse	1	2%
Unemployment	7	17%
Other	10	24%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	10	24%
Domestic Violence	1	2%
HIV AIDS	1	2%
Mental Health Issue	12	29%
Physical Disability	17	41%
PTSD	7	17%
Substance Abuse	9	22%
Traumatic Brain Injury	5	12%
Developmental Disability	6	15%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	24	59%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	20	49%
Pet Owner	22	54%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	7	17%
Health Insurance Coverage	32	78%
Veterans (extrapolated)	5	11%

UNINCORPORATED AREA 2		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
18	0	18

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	13	72%
Observed	5	28%
Age (Fully Extrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	2	11%
Adults (35-44)	4	22%
Adults (45-54)	7	39%
Adults (55-64)	4	22%
Adults (65+)	1	6%
Total	18	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	6%
Multiple Races	3	17%
White	14	78%
Total	18	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	7	39%
Non- Hispanic	11	61%
Total	18	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	7	39%
Male	11	61%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	18	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	2	15%
Park	0	0%
Street	0	0%
Tent/Shed	9	69%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	2	15%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	6	46%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	0	0%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	2	15%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	1	8%
Unemployment	1	8%
Other	2	15%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	4	31%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	1	8%
Mental Health Issue	6	46%
Physical Disability	5	38%
PTSD	3	23%
Substance Abuse	2	15%
Traumatic Brain Injury	4	31%
Developmental Disability	3	23%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	8	62%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	3	23%
Pet Owner	7	54%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	0	0%
Health Insurance Coverage	11	85%
Veterans (extrapolated)	1	6%

UNINCORPORATED AREA 3		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
28	0	28

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	13	46%
Observed	15	54%
Age (Fully Extrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	4%
Adults (25-34)	11	39%
Adults (35-44)	2	7%
Adults (45-54)	6	21%
Adults (55-64)	6	21%
Adults (65+)	2	7%
Total	28	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	2	7%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	6	21%
White	20	71%
Total	28	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	7	25%
Non- Hispanic	21	75%
Total	28	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	8	29%
Male	20	71%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	28	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	8%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	3	23%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	8%
Tent/Shed	4	31%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	8%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	3	23%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	3	23%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	1	8%
Lack of Income	0	0%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	1	8%
Other	5	38%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	4	31%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	1	8%
Physical Disability	5	38%
PTSD	2	15%
Substance Abuse	5	38%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	2	15%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	6	46%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	2	15%
Pet Owner	4	31%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	1	8%
Health Insurance Coverage	10	77%
Veterans (extrapolated)	2	7%

UNINCORPORATED AREA 4		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
43	24	67

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	32	74%
Observed	11	26%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	2%
Adults (25-34)	8	19%
Adults (35-44)	14	33%
Adults (45-54)	7	16%
Adults (55-64)	11	26%
Adults (65+)	2	5%
Total	43	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	4	9%
White	39	91%
Total	43	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	21	49%
Non- Hispanic	22	51%
Total	43	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	15	35%
Male	28	65%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	43	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	4	13%
Park	1	3%
Street	4	13%
Tent/Shed	6	19%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	1	3%
Vehicle	16	50%
Other		0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of interviewed
Family Disruption	10	31%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	1	3%
Lack of Income	6	19%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	3	9%
Runaway	2	6%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	3	9%
Other	5	16%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	7	22%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	5	16%
Physical Disability	7	22%
PTSD	11	34%
Substance Abuse	6	19%
Traumatic Brain Injury	3	9%
Developmental Disability	4	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	6	19%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	18	56%
Pet Owner	13	41%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	6	19%
Health Insurance Coverage	22	69%
Veterans (extrapolated)	0	0%

UNINCORPORATED AREA 5		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
68	0	68

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	38	56%
Observed	30	44%
Age (Fully Extrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	1	1%
Adults (25-34)	7	10%
Adults (35-44)	35	51%
Adults (45-54)	16	24%
Adults (55-64)	7	10%
Adults (65+)	2	3%
Total	68	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	0	0%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	5	7%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	4	6%
White	59	87%
Total	68	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	25	37%
Non- Hispanic	43	63%
Total	68	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	27	40%
Male	41	60%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	68	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviews
Abandoned Building	5	13%
Bus Station		0%
Encampment	4	11%
Park		0%
Street	8	21%
Tent/Shed	10	26%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	2	5%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	9	24%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviews
Family Disruption	13	34%
Domestic Violence	1	3%
Jail Release	3	8%
Lack of Income	4	11%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	1	3%
Substance Abuse	5	13%
Unemployment	6	16%
Other	3	8%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviews
Chronic Health Issue	10	26%
Domestic Violence	3	8%
HIV AIDS	2	5%
Mental Health Issue	12	32%
Physical Disability	11	29%
PTSD	15	39%
Substance Abuse	14	37%
Traumatic Brain Injury	8	21%
Developmental Disability	6	16%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviews
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	19	50%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	14	37%
Pet Owner	13	34%
Foster Care Experience	1	3%
Formerly Incarcerated	6	16%
Health Insurance Coverage	27	71%
Veterans (extrapolated)	4	6%

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

APPENDIX D SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS SUMMARY TABLES

Appendix | Page 105

DISTRICT 1		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
752	432	1184

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	380	51%
Observed	372	49%
Age (Fully Extrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	7	1%
Youth (18-24)	47	6%
Adults (25-34)	151	20%
Adults (35-44)	172	23%
Adults (45-54)	169	22%
Adults (55-64)	152	20%
Adults (65+)	54	7%
Total	752	99%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	24	3%
Asian, Asian American	11	1%
Black, African American, African	172	23%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	7	1%
Multiple Races	44	6%
White	494	66%
Total	752	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	293	39%
Non- Hispanic	459	61%
Total	752	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	233	31%
Male	512	68%
No Single Gender	5	1%
Questioning	1	0%
Transgender - Female	1	0%
Transgender - Male	0	0%
Total	752	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	18	5%
Bus Station	5	1%
Encampment	48	13%
Park	23	6%
Street	135	36%
Tent/Shed	61	16%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	3	1%
--	-----	-----------------
Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	80	21%
Other	0	0%
rimary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewe
Family Disruption	89	23%
Domestic Violence	9	2%
Jail Release	19	5%
Lack of Income	65	17%
Medical Discharge	1	0%
Mental Illness	18	5%
Runaway	7	2%
Substance Abuse	25	7%
Unemployment	41	11%
Other	70	18%
hallenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually xclusive)	#	% of Interviewe
Chronic Health Issue	78	21%
Domestic Violence	9	2%
HIV AIDS	3	1%
Mental Health Issue	97	26%
Physical Disability	85	22%
PTSD	96	25%
Substance Abuse	115	30%
Traumatic Brain Injury	63	17%
Developmental Disability	52	14%
pecial Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewe
Households w/ Children	2	22%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	186	49%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	133	35%
Pet Owner	89	23%
Foster Care Experience	7	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	74	19%
Health Insurance Coverage	255	67%
Veterans (extrapolated)	71	10%

DISTRICT 2		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
260	112	372

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	174	67%
Observed	86	33%
Age (Fully Extrapolated)	#	%
Children (≤17)	3	1%
Youth (18-24)	22	8%
Adults (25-34)	53	20%
Adults (35-44)	57	22%
Adults (45-54)	58	22%
Adults (55-64)	51	20%
Adults (65+)	16	6%
Total	260	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	8	3%
Asian, Asian American	4	2%
Black, African American, African	15	6%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	2	1%
Multiple Races	31	12%
White	200	77%
Total	260	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	110	42%
Non- Hispanic	150	58%
Total	260	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	74	28%
Male	181	70%
No Single Gender	2	1%
Questioning	1	0%
Transgender Female	1	0%
Transgender Male	1	0%
Total	260	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	11	6%
Bus Station	1	1%
Encampment	47	27%
Park	5	3%
Street	43	25%
Tent/Shed	20	11%

Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	2	1%
Vehicle	45	26%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	54	31%
Domestic Violence	2	1%
Jail Release	9	5%
Lack of Income	35	20%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	10	6%
Runaway	2	1%
Substance Abuse	13	7%
Unemployment	19	11%
Other	23	13%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	46	26%
Domestic Violence	1	1%
HIV AIDS	5	3%
Mental Health Issue	49	28%
Physical Disability	55	32%
PTSD	54	31%
Substance Abuse	99	57%
Traumatic Brain Injury	33	19%
Developmental Disability	28	16%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	98	56%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	68	39%
Pet Owner	55	32%
Foster Care Experience	2	1%
Formerly Incarcerated	37	21%
Health Insurance Coverage	109	63%
-		7%

DISTRICT 3		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
121	170	291

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	90	74%
Observed	31	26%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	7	6%
Adults (25-34)	32	26%
Adults (35-44)	34	28%
Adults (45-54)	13	11%
Adults (55-64)	26	21%
Adults (65+)	9	7%
Total	121	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	7	6%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	10	8%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	2	2%
Multiple Races	16	13%
White	86	71%
Total	121	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	24	20%
Non- Hispanic	97	80%
Total	121	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	36	30%
Male	84	69%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	1	1%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Total	121	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	6	7%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	15	17%
Park	2	2%
Street	27	30%
Tent/Shed	9	10%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	1%

Under Bridge	4	4%
Vehicle	26	29%
Other		0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	18	20%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	4	4%
Lack of Income	19	21%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	6	7%
Runaway	1	1%
Substance Abuse	13	14%
Unemployment	8	9%
Other	13	14%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	14	16%
Domestic Violence	3	3%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	20	22%
Physical Disability	18	20%
PTSD	20	22%
Substance Abuse	31	34%
Traumatic Brain Injury	10	11%
Developmental Disability	10	11%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	40	44%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	29	32%
Pet Owner	10	11%
Foster Care Experience	3	3%
Formerly Incarcerated	12	13%
Health Insurance Coverage	63	70%
Veterans (extrapolated)	6	5%

DISTRICT	4	
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
755	406	1161

UNSHELTERE	D	
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	410	54%
Observed	345	46%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	45	6%
Adults (25-34)	136	18%
Adults (35-44)	194	26%
Adults (45-54)	183	24%
Adults (55-64)	148	20%
Adults (65+)	49	6%
Total	755	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	26	3%
Asian, Asian American	12	2%
Black, African American, African	83	11%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	9	1%
Multiple Races	92	12%
White	533	71%
Total	755	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	318	42%
Non- Hispanic	437	58%
Total	755	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	205	27%
Male	546	72%
No Single Gender	2	0%
Questioning	1	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	1	0%
Total	755	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	21	5%
Bus Station	5	1%
Encampment	73	18%
Park	20	5%
Street	126	31%
Tent/Shed	77	19%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	0%

Under Bridge	13	3%
Vehicle	71	17%
Other	1	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	95	23%
Domestic Violence	3	1%
Jail Release	14	3%
Lack of Income	83	20%
Medical Discharge	2	0%
Mental Illness	14	3%
Runaway	8	2%
Substance Abuse	43	10%
Unemployment	57	14%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	79	19%
Domestic Violence	24	6%
HIV AIDS	9	2%
Mental Health Issue	87	21%
Physical Disability	93	23%
PTSD	114	28%
Substance Abuse	138	34%
Traumatic Brain Injury	66	16%
Developmental Disability	56	14%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	179	44%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	158	39%
Pet Owner	82	20%
Foster Care Experience	3	1%
Formerly Incarcerated	53	13%
Health Insurance Coverage	262	64%
Veterans (extrapolated)	58	8%

DISTRICT 5		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
553	164	717

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Area Count
Interviewed	314	57%
Observed	239	43%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	2	0%
Youth (18-24)	55	10%
Adults (25-34)	121	22%
Adults (35-44)	178	32%
Adults (45-54)	110	20%
Adults (55-64)	67	12%
Adults (65+)	20	4%
Total	553	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	7	1%
Asian, Asian American	8	1%
Black, African American, African	97	18%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	7	1%
Multiple Races	77	14%
White	357	65%
Total	553	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	176	32%
Non- Hispanic	377	68%
Total	553	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	157	28%
Male	394	71%
No Single Gender	2	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender Female	0	0%
Transgender Male	0	0%
Total	553	100%
Living Situation - Night before the Count - Interview Only	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	41	13%
Bus Station	1	0%
Encampment	41	13%
Park	6	2%
Street	117	37%
Tent/Shed	48	15%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	2	1%

Under Bridge	9	3%
Vehicle	49	16%
Other		0%
Primary Reasons for Homelessness (interview)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	106	34%
Domestic Violence	8	3%
Jail Release	11	4%
Lack of Income	53	17%
Medical Discharge	1	0%
Mental Illness	12	4%
Runaway	6	2%
Substance Abuse	21	7%
Unemployment	32	10%
Other	46	15%
Challenges / Barriers (interview, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	73	23%
Domestic Violence	22	7%
HIV AIDS	1	0%
Mental Health Issue	72	23%
Physical Disability	74	24%
PTSD	103	33%
Substance Abuse	115	37%
Traumatic Brain Injury	63	20%
Developmental Disability	47	15%
Special Interest Questions (interview)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	156	50%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	114	36%
Pet Owner	60	19%
Foster Care Experience	6	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	71	23%
	213	68%
Health Insurance Coverage	213	00/0

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 2023 HPITC REPORT

APPENDIX E SUBPOPULATIONS SUMMARY TABLES

Appendix | Page 115

HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN		
Unsheltered (households) Sheltered (households) Total		
11	132	143

UNSHELTER	RED	
Category	#	% of Count
Interviewed (persons)	9	39%
Observed (persons)	14	61%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	13	57%
Youth (18-24)	3	13%
Adults (25-34)	1	4%
Adults (35-44)	1	4%
Adults (45-54)	5	22%
Adults (55-64)	0	0%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Adults (Observed 25+)	0	0%
Total	23	100%
ace (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	1	4%
Asian, Asian American	3	13%
Black, African American, African	0	0%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	3	13%
White	16	70%
Total	23	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	13	57%
Non- Hispanic	10	43%
Unknown Ethnicity		0%
Total	23	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	9	39%
Male	14	61%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Unknown Gender		
Total	23	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	1	11%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	1	11%

Tent/Shed	2	22%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	5	56%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	4	44%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	0	0%
Lack of Income	2	22%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Unemployment	1	11%
Other	1	11%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	0	0%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	1	11%
Physical Disability	0	0%
PTSD	1	11%
Substance Abuse	0	0%
Traumatic Brain Injury	0	0%
Developmental Disability	0	0%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	11	100%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	0	0%
First Time Homeless <i>(self-report)</i>	7	78%
Pet Owner	0	0%
Foster Care Experience	1	11%
Formerly Incarcerated	0	0%
Health Insurance Coverage	7	78%
Veterans	0	0%

SENIORS AGED 62+ Only		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
156	101	257

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	156	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	0	0%
Adults (25-34)	0	0%
Adults (35-44)	0	0%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-61)	0	0%
Adults (62+)	156	100%
Total	156	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	5	3%
Asian, Asian American	1	1%
Black, African American, African	19	12%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	3	2%
Multiple Races	16	10%
White	112	72%
Total	156	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	44	28%
Non- Hispanic	112	72%
Total	156	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	43	28%
Male	113	72%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Total	156	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	9	6%
Bus Station	2	1%
Encampment	19	12%
Park	5	3%
Street	53	34%

Tent/Shed	17	11%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	51	33%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	26	17%
Domestic Violence	1	1%
Jail Release	9	6%
Lack of Income	47	30%
Medical Discharge	1	1%
Mental Illness	9	6%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	1	1%
Unemployment	53	34%
Other	33	21%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	53	34%
Domestic Violence	7	4%
HIV AIDS	1	1%
Mental Health Issue	28	18%
Physical Disability	55	35%
PTSD	38	24%
Substance Abuse	32	21%
Traumatic Brain Injury	22	14%
Developmental Disability	22	14%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	66	42%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	57	37%
Pet Owner	39	25%
Foster Care Experience	0	0%
Formerly Incarcerated	12	8%
Health Insurance Coverage	125	80%
Veterans	25	16%

TAY YOUTH (18-24)		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
154	75	229

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of Count
Interviewed	60	39%
Observed	94	61%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	154	100%
Adults (25-34)	0	0%
Adults (35-44)	0	0%
Adults (45-54)	0	0%
Adults (55-64)	0	0%
Adults (65+)	0	0%
Total	154	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	2	1%
Asian, Asian American	2	1%
Black, African American, African	25	16%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	6	4%
Multiple Races	23	15%
White	96	62%
Total	154	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	80	52%
Non- Hispanic	74	48%
Total	154	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	61	40%
Male	93	60%
No Single Gender	0	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Total	154	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	5	8%
Bus Station	3	5%
Encampment	7	12%
Park	6	10%
Street	23	38%

Tent/Shed	6	10%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	1	2%
Vehicle	8	13%
Other	1	2%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	20	33%
Domestic Violence	2	3%
Jail Release	2	3%
Lack of Income	5	8%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	6	10%
Runaway	6	10%
Substance Abuse	3	5%
Unemployment	5	8%
Other	4	7%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	5	8%
Domestic Violence	7	12%
HIV AIDS	1	2%
Mental Health Issue	13	22%
Physical Disability	6	10%
PTSD	15	25%
Substance Abuse	18	30%
Traumatic Brain Injury	6	10%
Developmental Disability	8	13%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	2%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	23	38%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	28	47%
Pet Owner	9	15%
Foster Care Experience	20	33%
Formerly Incarcerated	8	13%
Health Insurance Coverage	27	45%
Veterans	2	3%

VETERANS		
Unsheltered (extrapolated)	Sheltered	Total
198	58	256

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	100	51%
Observed	98	49%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	2	1.00%
Adults (25-34)	32	16.00%
Adults (35-44)	35	18.00%
Adults (45-54)	46	23.00%
Adults (55-64)	62	31.00%
Adults (65+)	21	11.00%
Total	198	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	4	2%
Asian, Asian American	1	1%
Black, African American, African	36	18%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	4	2%
Multiple Races	40	20%
White	113	57%
Total	198	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	59	30%
Non- Hispanic	139	70%
Total	198	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	16	8%
Male	174	88%
No Single Gender	4	2%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Other	4	2%
Total	198	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	11	11%
Bus Station	1	1%
Encampment	15	15%
Park	5	5%
Street	38	38%
Tent/Shed	16	16%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%

Under Bridge	0	0%
Vehicle	14	14%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	25	25%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	7	7%
Lack of Income	17	17%
Medical Discharge	1	1%
Mental Illness	7	7%
Runaway	0	0%
Substance Abuse	8	8%
Unemployment	16	16%
Other	15	15%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	29	29%
Domestic Violence	5	5%
HIV AIDS	1	1%
Mental Health Issue	23	23%
Physical Disability	30	30%
PTSD	31	31%
Substance Abuse	31	31%
Traumatic Brain Injury	20	20%
Developmental Disability	20	20%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	49	49%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	37	37%
Pet Owner	14	14%
Foster Care Experience	2	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	19	19%
Health Insurance Coverage	72	72%
Veterans	100	100%

CHRONICALLY HOMELESS		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
659	392	1051

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	%
Interviewed	659	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	23	3%
Adults (25-34)	146	22%
Adults (35-44)	185	28%
Adults (45-54)	157	24%
Adults (55-64)	123	19%
Adults (65+)	25	4%
Total	659	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	21	3%
Asian, Asian American	13	2%
Black, African American, African	87	13%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	3	0%
Multiple Races	74	11%
White	461	70%
Total	659	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	215	33%
Non- Hispanic	444	67%
Total	659	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	207	31%
Male	440	67%
No Single Gender	8	1%
Questioning	2	0%
Transgendered	2	0%
Total	659	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% Interviewed
Abandoned Building	48	7%
Bus Station	3	0%
Encampment	115	17%
Park	25	4%
Street	232	35%
Tent/Shed	102	15%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	20	3%

Vehicle	112	17%
Other	2	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% Interviewed
Family Disruption	196	30%
Domestic Violence	11	2%
Jail Release	28	4%
Lack of Income	119	18%
Medical Discharge	2	0%
Mental Illness	32	5%
Runaway	13	2%
Substance Abuse	77	12%
Unemployment	61	9%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	207	31%
Domestic Violence	59	9%
HIV AIDS	16	2%
Mental Health Issue	275	42%
Physical Disability	267	41%
PTSD	288	44%
Substance Abuse	391	59%
Traumatic Brain Injury	160	24%
Developmental Disability	158	24%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	659	100%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	217	33%
Pet Owner	167	25%
Foster Care Experience	10	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	123	19%
Health Insurance Coverage	496	75%
Veterans	49	7%

First-Time Homeless		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
502	N/A	502

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	502	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	5	1%
Youth (18-24)	28	6%
Adults (25-34)	107	21%
Adults (35-44)	140	28%
Adults (45-54)	105	21%
Adults (55-64)	85	17%
Adults (65+)	32	6%
Total	502	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	13	3%
Asian, Asian American	4	1%
Black, African American, African	88	18%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	6	1%
Multiple Races	69	14%
White	322	64%
Total	502	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	237	47%
Non- Hispanic	265	53%
Total	502	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	142	28%
Male	357	71%
No Single Gender	2	0%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	1	0%
Total	502	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewe
Abandoned Building	37	7%
Bus Station	6	1%
Encampment	86	17%
Park	23	5%
Street	147	29%

Tent/Shed	68	14%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	1	0%
Under Bridge	10	2%
Vehicle	124	25%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	130	26%
Domestic Violence	7	1%
Jail Release	22	4%
Lack of Income	113	23%
Medical Discharge	2	0%
Mental Illness	23	5%
Runaway	7	1%
Substance Abuse	40	8%
Unemployment	59	12%
Other	0	0%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	110	22%
Domestic Violence	37	7%
HIV AIDS	6	1%
Mental Health Issue	114	23%
Physical Disability	125	25%
PTSD	130	26%
Substance Abuse	155	31%
Traumatic Brain Injury	86	17%
Developmental Disability	85	17%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	7	1%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	1	0%
First Time Homeless (<i>self-report</i>)	502	100%
Pet Owner	104	21%
Foster Care Experience	10	2%
Formerly Incarcerated	112	22%
Health Insurance Coverage	327	65%
Veterans	37	7%

FORMERLY INCARCERATED		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
247	233*	480

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	%
Interviewed	247	1
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	0	0%
Youth (18-24)	8	3%
Adults (25-34)	79	32%
Adults (35-44)	80	32%
Adults (45-54)	48	19%
Adults (55-64)	29	12%
Adults (65+)	3	1%
Total	247	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	7	3%
Asian, Asian American	4	2%
Black, African American, African	36	15%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	0	0%
Multiple Races	34	14%
White	166	67%
Total	247	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	104	42%
Non- Hispanic	143	58%
Total	247	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	61	25%
Male	179	72%
No Single Gender	4	2%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	1	0%
Other gender	2	1%
Total	247	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	22	9%
Bus Station	1	0%
Encampment	60	24%
Park	14	6%
Street	77	31%
Tent/Shed	31	13%

Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	2	1%
Under Bridge	4	2%
Vehicle	36	15%
Other	0	0%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	72	29%
Domestic Violence	8	3%
Jail Release	23	9%
Lack of Income	43	17%
Medical Discharge	1	0%
Mental Illness	8	3%
Runaway	6	2%
Substance Abuse	28	11%
Unemployment	22	9%
Other	24	10%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	59	24%
Domestic Violence	24	10%
HIV AIDS	2	1%
Mental Health Issue	79	32%
Physical Disability	67	27%
PTSD	87	35%
Substance Abuse	103	42%
Traumatic Brain Injury	68	28%
Developmental Disability	44	18%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	0	0%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	123	50%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	112	45%
Pet Owner	48	19%
Foster Care Experience	3	1%
Formerly Incarcerated	247	100%
Health Insurance Coverage	172	70%
Veterans	19	8%

* Sheltered number is based on data from agencies entering into HMIS

COUCH SURFERS		
Unsheltered	Sheltered	Total
39	N/A	39

UNSHELTERED		
Category	#	% of City Count
Interviewed	39	100%
Observed	0	0%
Age (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Children (≤17)	1	3%
Youth (18-24)	14	36%
Adults (25-34)	6	15%
Adults (35-44)	6	15%
Adults (45-54)	3	8%
Adults (55-64)	7	18%
Adults (65+)	2	5%
Total	39	100%
Race (all) Extrapolated	#	%
American Indian, Alaskan Native, Indigenous	5	13%
Asian, Asian American	0	0%
Black, African American, African	7	18%
Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander	1	3%
Multiple Races	4	10%
White	22	56%
Total	39	100%
Ethnicity (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Hispanic, Latin(o), (a), (x)	18	46%
Non- Hispanic	21	54%
Total	39	100%
Gender (all) Extrapolated	#	%
Female	9	23%
Male	29	74%
No Single Gender	1	3%
Questioning	0	0%
Transgender	0	0%
Total	39	100%
Living Situation on the Night Before the Count (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Abandoned Building	0	0%
Bus Station	0	0%
Encampment	0	0%
Park	0	0%
Street	0	0%
Tent/Shed	0	0%
Tiny Home (without basic amenities)	0	0%
Under Bridge	0	0%

Vehicle	0	0%
Other - Couch Surver	39	100%
Primary Reason for Homelessness (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Family Disruption	13	33%
Domestic Violence	0	0%
Jail Release	3	8%
Lack of Income	5	13%
Medical Discharge	0	0%
Mental Illness	0	0%
Runaway	2	5%
Substance Abuse	3	8%
Unemployment	4	10%
Other	4	10%
Challenges / Barriers (interview only, not mutually exclusive)	#	% of Interviewed
Chronic Health Issue	5	13%
Domestic Violence	2	5%
HIV AIDS	0	0%
Mental Health Issue	4	10%
Physical Disability	6	15%
PTSD	10	26%
Substance Abuse	15	38%
Traumatic Brain Injury	5	13%
Developmental Disability	3	8%
Special Interest Questions (interview only)	#	% of Interviewed
Households w/ Children	1	3%
Chronically Homeless (generated based on qualifying responses)	10	26%
First Time Homeless (self-report)	21	54%
Pet Owner	4	10%
Foster Care Experience	5	13%
Formerly Incarcerated	14	36%
Health Insurance Coverage	25	64%
Veteran	1	3%